
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations (including 
auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should notify the City Recorder at 766-9793 at least 
one day prior to the meeting. 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Thursday, June 26, 2014 

Meeting held at the Saratoga Springs City Offices 
1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200, Saratoga Springs 

 
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
Regular Session commencing at 6:30 P.M. 
 
Regular Meeting  
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. Roll Call.  

 
3. Public Input – Time has been set aside for any person to express ideas, concerns, comments, questions or issues that are 

not listed on the agenda.  Comments are limited to three minutes. 
 

4. Public Hearing and Possible Action: Home Occupation for a Dance Studio located at 3349 South Hawk Drive, Shelley Rollins, 
applicant. Presented by Scott Langford. 
 

5. Continued Public Hearing and Possible Recommendation: Preliminary Plat and Public Hearing and Possible 
Recommendation: Amended Site Plan, both for Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3 located at 1900 North Crest Road, Nate 
Hutchinson, Flagship Homes, applicant. Presented by Sarah Carroll.   
 

6. Public Hearing and Possible Recommendation: Rezone and Concept Plan for Harvest Heights located between Redwood 
Road and Springhill Drive, Fieldstone Utah Investors, applicant. Presented by Kimber Gabryszak. 
 

7. Public Hearing and Possible Recommendation: Site Plan Amendment to Westgate Shops B (Lot 8 of the Saratoga Wal-Mart 
Subdivision) for Café Rio located at 1513 North Redwood Road, Bill Gaskill, applicant. Presented by Sarah Carroll. 
 

8. Concept Plan for Saratoga Springs South Stake Center located at 3300 South Village Parkway, Evans and Associates 
Architecture, applicant. Presented by Sarah Carroll. 
 

9. Continued Discussion and Possible Recommendation for Legacy Farm Community Plan and Village Plan located at 400 
South Redwood Road, DR Horton, applicant. Presented by Kimber Gabryszak. 

  
10. Approval of Reports of Action. 

 
11. Approval of Minutes: 
 

1. June 12, 2014. 
  
12. Commission Comments. 

 
13. Director’s Report. 
 
14. Adjourn. 
 
*Public comments are limited to three minutes.  Please limit repetitive comments. 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 1 of 8 
 

City of Saratoga Springs 
Planning Commission Meeting 

June 12, 2014 
Regular Session held at the City of Saratoga Springs City Offices 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200, Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Planning Commission Minutes 
 

Present: 
Commission Members: Jeff, Cochran, Jarred Henline, Kirk Wilkins, Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, 

Kara North 
Staff: Kimber Gabryszak, Sarah Carroll, Scott Langford, Nicolette Fike, Jeremy Lapin, Kevin Thurman 
Others: Teri Smith, Davidi Call, Jolayne Call, Susan Palmer, Ronald Johnston, Gaila Meyers,  T. Meyers, 

LomeLee McKinnen, Barbara Raines, Ty Shepherd, Nancy Hart, J.C. Hart, Nancy Kramar, Krisel 
Travis, Tim Cullins, Gary Hadfield, Susan Hadfield, Charlie Heaton, Fred Jepson, Judy Jepson, Leah 
Hansen, Henry Barlow, Neil Infanger, Pam Infanger, Susan Petersen, Doug Graber, Viren Prins, Daniel 
Prins, Thane Smith, Scott Dunn 

 
Call to Order - 6:35 p.m. by Jeff Cochran 
Pledge of Allegiance - led by Ty Shepherd 
Roll Call - Quorum was present  

 
No commission input was given at this time. 

 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 

No public input at this time. 
Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 

 
4. Continued Public Hearing: Preliminary Plat for Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3 located at 1900 

North Crest Road, Nate Hutchinson, Flagship Homes, applicant. Presented by Sarah Carroll. 
CONTINUED TO JUNE 26, 2014 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING. 
 
Motion by Hayden Williamson to continue public hearing for Preliminary Plat for Hillcrest 

Condominiums Phase 3 located at 1900 North Crest Road, until the June 26, 2014 planning 
commission meeting. Seconded by Kara North  Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey 
Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
5.  Continued Public Hearing: Preliminary Plat for Lake Cove located at 3168 South Spinnaker Drive, 

Ron Johnston, applicant. 
Scott Langford presented the plat. They are looking at payment in lieu of more open space. 
Ron Johnston, applicant, was present to answer questions. 
 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 

No public input at this time. 
Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 

 
Sandra Steele - had no comments 
Hayden Williamson had no comments 
Kirk Wilkins – asked if there were plans to include steps on steep retention slope. 
Staff – replied that they were still working on final plan. 
Kara North - would support the payment in lieu, feels it is a wise use and likes the plan. 
Jarred Henline - had no comment.  
Jeff Cochran - also supports payment in lieu with proximity to marina and small size. 

 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 2 of 8 
 

Motion by Sandra Steele that based upon the evidence and explanations received today, I move that 
the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the City Council to approve the 
Lake Cove Preliminary Subdivision Plat on property generally located at 3168 South Spinnaker 
Drive,  as identified in exhibit 2 with the findings and conditions as found in the staff report. 
Seconded by Kirk Wilkins.  Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk 
Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
6.  Continued Public Hearing: Site Plan and Conditional Use for Platinum Car Wash located at 1413 N 
West Commerce Drive, Gary Hadfield, applicant. 

Sarah Carroll - presented the site plan, along with staff findings and City Council recommendations. 
 Gary Hadfield - was present to answer any questions. 

 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 

No input was brought forward 
Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 
 
Jarred Henline - is in favor of all the conditions, but doesn’t understand why the signs her counted are 

needed.  He expressed desire that the plan may be better flipped or a berm to protect sightline from 
S.R.73 and said lighting needs to comply with city standard. 

Gary Hadfield – thought there was a berm on the parking side. He also said that for his business people 
being able to see the cars being washed is advertisement for him. 

Kara North was ok with landscape reduction; she appreciates the applicant supplementing parking and 
agrees with Mr. Henline that 3 signs plus a monument may be too much. 

Kirk Wilkins – setbacks on S.R.73 he would like to maintain to beautify the city and maintain a bugger, but 
was ok with decreasing on the east side.  He supports current code on signage.  He likes the added 
parking and noted lighting design should match city standards and approves of the bell shape.  He would 
like the additional trellis landscaping on the wall. 

Hayden Williamson – echoes most of what was said before, but sees the need for more prominent signs. 
Sandra Steele – would like to see architectural relief on the outside of the building, she likes the use of vines 

and other plants to add to visual appeal on the long wall.  She also would only like to see two signs and 
felt lighting was not sufficient to light all areas.   

Gary Hadfield – responded that the signs were very small and felt all 3 signs should be allowed. He is in 
agreement that a little more lights would be good. 

Jeff Cochran – added disappointment with landscape reduction on Commerce dr. but much prefers building 
setback, so he is ok with that. He reviewed suggestions by Commission before entertaining a motion. 

 
Motion by Sandra Steele that Based upon evidence and explanations received today I move that the 

Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the City Council for approval of the 
Platinum Car Wash Site Plan and Conditional Use permit on property located at 1413 N West 
Commerce Drive, with the findings and conditions contained in the staff report with the addition 
of; that the signs be limited to two wall signs, their choice of which two. That architectural interest 
shall be added to the West wall of the wash tunnel. That there be parking lot lighting for the 
Southeast corner that building lighting be provided for wash tunnel building on the west side, that 
a landscape berm be added on commerce drive and S.R.73.  Seconded by Jarred Henline. 

 
Kara North – with signage requirement, the two wall signage indicated does not restrict other signs? 
Sandra Steele – answered affirmative. 

 
Aye: Sandra Steele, Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred Henline.  Nay: Hayden 

Williamson.  Motion carries 5 to 1. 
 
Hayden Williamson – voted no, because he does not feel right with forcing a berm on the S.R. 73 side. 

He sides with the developer that there is value for him that his cars be seen for business advertising 
and that we be more business friendly, and allowing signs to help business be more visible is part of 
that.   

 
Gary Hadfield - applicant would like to withdraw his application.  The berm on the south side was more 

than he could handle.   



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 3 of 8 
 

 
7.  Public Hearing: Preliminary Plat for Talus Ridge located at 550 North 800 West, Edge Homes, 

applicant.  
Sarah Carroll presented the plat. Staff supported lot size reduction.  She reviewed staff findings and 

conditions. 
Steve Maddox – noted the mild change to access on west and that they repealed zone request.   
 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 
Henry Barlow – they have addressed the animal issues before and likes that they are noted on the plat, his 

concern is on the fencing, they want it decided that the fence will be animal friendly and not just vinyl 
Jeff Cochran - asked for fencing suggestions.   
Henry Barlow – his main concern was that vinyl would not be sufficient.  He is using barbed wire now and 

that could stay up but may not be sufficient.  He would like to see pre-cast walls. 
Charlie Heaton – Just wanted to reiterate the points about letting people know that the land around is 

agriculture, and specifically letting people know what that means in regards to smell, flies dust, etc.  He 
also feels fencing needs to be addressed.  He thinks fencing needs to be set apart so farmer can maintain 
his fence and property and subdivision can maintain theirs. Again, vinyl is not the best option. He is 
concerned for the safety of children who are drawn to the animals. 

Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 
 

Sandra Steele – has it been considered by developer the Wildland Urban Interface and defensible space.  
Other projects have been 30’ area without buildings that is maintained, an HOA could maintain it. She 
noted that some street names were not compliant.   

Steve Maddox – has said he would be willing to go half with property owner to the south about a masonry 
fence.   He also will communicate as clear as possible about agriculture issues.  He will do additional 
study on the wildland area but doesn’t think this phase impacts that.  

Hayden Williamson – encouraged the developer to work with current agriculture owners to come up with a 
good fence solution.  

Kirk Wilkins – congratulated developer for all the changes he has done to work with city and current 
residences.  He asked developer what he would suggest doing about some fencing that would be 
aesthetically nice and also functional, and would he do two fences or one?  His suggestion is to avoid a 
wire fence. 

Steve Maddox – replied he would not like to do two fences, just one.  A fence would be a courtesy, not 
required. 

Kara North – appreciates the developer’s compromises. She does not feel they can require a precast fence 
and that parents should be responsible for kids. She is in favor of lot reductions. 

Jarred Henline – thinks applicant has done a good job working with all concerns. 
Jeff Cochran – encourages the applicant to come back with setbacks met to code and not ask for more 

reduction.  Question to staff, this agricultural issue is not new to the city, and asked what has been done 
in the past where agricultural butts up to urban area.  

Kevin Thurman – wanted to note that the law is that the owner is responsible for fencing their animals in. 
The city is fenced in.  He said there is nothing that says they need to place a fence between the 
agriculture property and the subdivision. He felt existing agriculture operations were well protected by 
the state law. 

Kimber Gabryszak – said this is more new where the development is right next to agricultural area. So far 
the main suggestion has been to put the note on the plat notifying buyers to beware. 

Jeff Cochran – feels the city has the responsibility to protect the current agricultural owners. He would hope 
developer and agriculture owners could come up with a fair solution that works for both. He doesn’t feel 
they have the authority to force a certain type of fence. 

 
Motion by Sandra Steele that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the 

City Council to approve the Talus Ridge Preliminary Plat located at approximately 500 North 800 
West, with the findings and conditions listed in the staff report with the addition of a condition #9 
which would be the naming of all streets shall comply with 19.27.03.4 which states that proposed 
street names shall not be longer than the typical 13 blank space street sign. That either Summit 
Court or Summit Way must be eliminated. Seconded by Hayden Williamson. 

 
Kara North – wanted it to clarity that it be the naming of the street be eliminated, not the street itself. 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 4 of 8 
 

Sandra Steele – accepted that clarification. 
Jeff Cochran - asked if they could request what the agricultural note on the plat would say. He would 

like to see what the note would say.  
Kevin Thurman - said they could make the recommendation and council would review. 

 
Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred 

Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
A 5 minute break was taken at this time.  Meeting resumed at 7:56p.m. Kara North was excused. 

 
8.  Public Hearing: Preliminary Plat for Sierra Estates located at 600 West 400 North, Patterson Homes, 

applicant.  
Sarah Carroll - presented the plat for an additional phase in the Sierra Development.    
Scott Dunn, for Patterson Homes – would like the city to take care of the small park strip since this 

development is not an HOA.  
 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 
Charlie Heaton – wanted the city to take a stand with good plan for agricultural in the city. He had concerns 

with irrigation water that floods on and off the pasture, and would there be a drainage system in place to 
take that water. He was concerned with making sure his agriculture rights were protected.  He is not as 
worried about keeping animals out of residence properties but he is more concerned with keeping the 
kids out of his property and getting in with the animals.  He also wants to continue to burn ditches and 
all that goes with agricultural property. 

Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 
 

Sarah Carroll – staff does recommend fencing on North and South.  
Jarred Henline –with the park strip, he didn’t want the city to take on the cost, he would say no, but didn’t 

want to make it a problem for the HOA.  He felt the agriculture owners needed to take their own 
measures to help their animals not be an attractive nuisance. 

Kirk Wilkins – thinks the developer can work out a way to get the strip taken care of with the revenue he is 
getting in exchange.  He thinks the city should not take it on. 

Hayden Williamson – feels the city could look into developments next to agricultural areas and come up 
with ordinances that protect existing owners and future developers and property owners.  Feels the 
agriculture note on plats of this type should be standard. He feels property owners should ameliorate the 
fencing issue and not have the city define it.  He understood the developer’s dilemma in forming an 
HOA for just the park strip. He asked staff if there was a mechanism to where developer could shift 
burden from them to city, like payment. 

Jeremy Lapin - feels this conversation needs to be city wide, not just on this subdivision, a policy decision 
that will affect subdivisions in the future.   

Sandra Steele – thinks we need to be consistent with park strip issue and doesn’t want the city to take it on 
but doesn’t like to see a HOA formed just for this reason either.  She is concerned with neighboring 
flood irrigation.   

Jeremy Lapin – indicated that the property owner is responsible for their own water.  But feels it should be 
addressed by developer to protect homeowners too.   
Kevin Thurman – noted that owners could petition the council for an agricultural protection area, they 
would be protected from nuisances and ties cities hands for passing ordinances that would restrict 
animal rights and eminent domain. 

Jeff Cochran – also questioned about tail-water leaving the property.   
Jeremy Lapin - said there was a ditch on the property line and a system in place but property owner is 

responsible to get the water to that system. 
Jeff Cochran – also doesn’t like to see an HOA for such a small area. He is in support of the current city 

position, but thinks the city might consider looking at it closer.   
 

Motion by Sandra Steele  that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council to approve Sierra Estates Preliminary Plat, located at approximately 550 North  800 
West with the findings and conditions contained within the staff report. Seconded by Jarred 
Henline.  Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, 
Jarred Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 5 of 8 
 

 
9.  Concept Plan for Vista Heights located at 612 West Pony Express Parkway, Evans and Associate 

Architects, applicant.  
Sarah Carroll – presented concept plan for a church located at this site, and staff findings. 
Paul Evans for applicant – was present to answer any questions 

 
Sandra Steele – thought the lighting should conform to city standards.  She recommended pushing the North 

access road out further to the west as they were too close and that there could be a stub for a future 
access. She is not in favor of decreasing turf as much as proposed. 

Hayden Williamson – wondered what the plan for overflow parking would be. 
Kirk Wilkins – feels the xeriscaping would be nice and likes the more trees and shrubs. He would like to see 

west openings be pushed out to the next drive isle also.  
Jarred Henline – feels the lights should match. He has no problem with reduction to landscape but wanted a 

higher percentage of 2-1/2‘ caliper trees, as staff requested.  
Jeff Cochran – is in favor of the xeriscaping.  He agrees that lighting needs to be standardized and that drive 

be moved further west. 
Paul Evans - addressed some commission questions.  They would prefer not to provide access to the east as 

they are unsure as to when the area to the east would be used. Church standard landscaping has been a 
maximum of 35% sod and they don’t like to do more, most current churches in the area were to that 
standard.  In lighting standard, he will pass that on. As for overflow, their parking met standards for the 
church and didn’t feel a need for any more parking for overflow as now each building is used for Stake 
conferences.  He felt they had discussed moving the west access before with staff and thinks it would be 
fine. Disability stalls on north side are a little further away to meet grade standards.  

 
 Kara North returned via Facetime. 

 
 10. Public Hearings: Legacy Farm Community Plan and the Village Plan located at 400 South Redwood 

Road, DR Horton, applicant.  
Kimber Gabryszak presented the plans background and requests.  She showed the changes that have been 

made to the plan and showed some details as to different zones within the plans and some examples. 
She reviews staff recommendations. 

Greg Haws, for applicant – had a presentation he shared which highlighted some new changes and other 
items in the plan. He also shared a Memo of Clarification he sent to the City. 

 
Public Input Open by Jeff Cochran 
Nancy Hart – noted that Commission had denied Sierra Estates on their mowing, but they have indicated 

that they would mow for legacy farms along their road.  She feels the hearing is about more that legacy 
farms, she wants developer to comply with the laws on the books and approved by voters last Fall.  She 
is concerned that the area is protected for the community and that the environment is preserved. She is 
concerned about amenities that are implied but that aren’t defined. She would like to see more plans 
confirmed. She wants the unique identity of Saratoga Springs to be preserved.  

Terri Smith – is concerned with proposed density, specifically lots called cottages.  She feels there will be 
crowding and issues in that area and that they are about half the size the commission recommended. She 
doesn’t’ like the alley’s, they feel unsafe. She wants to make sure emergency vehicles can access easily. 
Another concern is zoning for small businesses, especially bed and breakfasts.  She feels parking for 
that type of business could not be adequate.  They know it is not possible for land to remain farm land. 
She feels the city voted to control density and that the community wishes are not being met in this 
proposal. 

J.C. Hart – expressed his concern to the promises made to current homeowners that he feels have not been 
met. He is concerned with fencing along their property, that it should match what is currently there.  He 
had spoken with developers about a plan previously that has now changed.  He would like the City to 
support what people of the city have voted for. 

Pam Infanger – feels promises have been made that have not been held to and that there have been too many 
different plans.  She suggested that the City set up a traffic committee to look at entrances onto 
Redwood Road.  She feels there are too many close entrances in that area with Redwood road being too 
skinny in that area. She is concerned about Saratoga Road and safety of the roads in the area. 

 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 6 of 8 
 

David Call – is concerned with the density factor of the development.  He was concerned that the developer 
has done too much bait and switch.   

Gaila Meyers – thinks the development is fairly large and will define and impact the city for good or bad.  
She also mentioned the density. Her concern is about flooding and drainage and asked if Tickville wash 
plan has been resolved and doesn’t think it should go forward without those plans in place. 

Barbara Raines – she would like developer to comply with density that the voters voted for this past year. 
She has spoken with Alpine District and they told her the plans for a school there are not concrete.  She 
notes there may be extra expense for the district to put a school in this area of flood plain. She would 
like plans to be more definitive. 

Doug Graham – echoes sentiments shared earlier.  He feels this development will define how the city is seen 
in the future. He urges commission to find the right compromise. 

Leah Hansen – she is concerned with the traffic and the increase to pollution. 
Susan Petersen – is concerned  that more building closer to the lake will destroy the natural environment. 

She would like the city to protect this unique area. 
LomaLee McKinnan – noted that there is a great deal of concern and interest in this development.  She is 

concerned about continuity of trail system and privacy fences that might become a dumping area. She 
feels there should be a wildlife survey done. Her concern with density is that there will be more 
vandalism and violations in the current subdivision.   

Neil Infanger – question about open space next to the current subdivision and if it were to be xeriscaped and 
would that count towards useable area.  

Tim Cullin’s  - brought up concerns with water availability, and how their irrigation was metered. 
Dan Prins - concerned about traffic and sewage upgrade that should be addressed and concern about 

wildlife. 
 

Public Input Closed by Jeff Cochran 
 

A 5 minute break was taken at this time. 
 

Kevin Thurman – addressed existing property rights and proposition 6 and that it wasn’t meant to affect this 
plan that was already in the works. It was perceived by residents that it would stop high density but it 
made changes to the General Plan which is more of an advisory document to the city. 

Kimber Gabryszak – the district area plan is an agreement between the City and property owner, it calls out 
specific neighborhood types and specific unit types and doesn’t allocate the density to a specific 
location. She reminded everyone that this is not the last time it will be seen.   

Jeremy Lapin – addressed some of the public comments about utilities, flood plains and traffic. He noted 
that planning in infrastructure is based on growth rate.     

Kimber Gabryszak – noted that xeriscaping is allowed to some degree. 
Greg Haws – addressed some of the public comments.  He noted that the school district had asked them to 

move the school area. They have always been at 1000 ERU’s  He feels there has been no change on the 
detention area.  He noted that Councilman McOmbers’ bait and switch comments were more 
specifically about the pool and clubhouse and that has been put back in the plan. 

Sandra Steele – on the Community plan, she still has many of the same comments she had at their previous 
meeting.  She noted some changes that may be needed in the verbiage in the plan.  She had comments to 
share about lighting, traffic studies, elevations, shared lanes and private streets, emergency access.  On 
the Village plan she had concerns with the snow storage and having enough parking. Also that parking 
meet requirements.  She shared several concerns about parking, lighting, lot plans, street names and 
shared lanes.  

Hayden Williamson – talked about 20’ buffer with trail and privacy fencing.  He felt they should have 
privacy fencing there and along Redwood Road.  He feels it would be appropriate to have the HOA 
maintain the space along Redwood rd. He recalls the commitment made in previous meeting to residents 
about rod iron.  He sees the concern about the current neighborhood amenities but feels they need to 
protect their own amenities and not ask the city to do so.  He liked the previous skate park area and 
thought it would draw away from the Saratoga Springs development.  He likes that they brought back 
the pool.   

Kirk Wilkins – wanted clarification on the buffer,  what is going to be in between the current residences and 
the new subdivision.   



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 7 of 8 
 

Krisel Travis – replied that the buffer is required by code between different uses. They comply in some 
areas and in other areas they are proposing that where similar uses will exist, e.g. houses next to houses, 
that a waiver be made.  They are putting in a trail and will make some connectivity with existing trails.  

Kirk Wilkins - agrees that HOA should maintain along Redwood road. Also if an iron fence was promised it 
should be honored. 

Jarred Henline – feels that most comments were about density and that is something they can’t really touch.  
So the question becomes how to best make the transition. He would back most commissioners’ 
comments, he is in favor of approving the buffer waiver is in favor moving both items forward with 
changes that have been proposed. 

Kara North –would be in favor of buffer waiver, debating private vs. semi private fencing along the path, 
it’s a balance of safety and privacy.  Given the amount of green space the HOA would be maintaining, 
and the few exceptions currently in the city, she is not entirely opposed to the city taking care of the 
strip on Redwood Road.  

Jeff Cochran – understands the nature of the changing city and new building coming in.  The developer has 
certain rights with this property he is entitled to +/- 1000 ERU’s. We will see more detailed plans and 
more time to comment on them but this basic plan is not going to change.  Bait and switch comment 
was generally on the pool vs. a skate park.  If the developer can adjust those few things suggested, he is 
in favor of moving this along tonight.   

Sandra Steele – didn’t want on-street parking to be encouraged with 18’ driveways. 
Krisel Travis – clarified the item of the 18’drive is enough for drive, 20’ is their usual goal. She noted on-

street parking was encouraged to slow traffic. 
Krisel Travis - wanted to make a comment that Sherwood Street was changed to a local street. The snow 

storage and removal was based on Lake Tahoe area plan.  If the City maintains Redwood rd. than they 
would be willing to have semi private fence in those locations, but if the HOA maintains it they want 
privacy fences.  

 
Motion by Sandra Steele to continue both the Village plan and the Community plan to another 

meeting with a caveat that the public hearing has been closed. With direction to the applicant and 
the staff on information and changes needed to render a decision as follows; the applicant shall 
correct all typos, totals and numbers that don’t match, percentages and acreages that don’t add 
up. A correct street naming plan. Correct the fencing plan to reflect what you plan to do. I’d like 
to see more of the updated traffic study. Put notes on concerning fire turn around and turning 
radius’ for both in the shared lanes and private roads. The street lighting to match the city 
standards and to provide guest parking off the street.  Seconded by Hayden Williamson. 

 
Hayden Williamson - question on stipulation on off street parking, if we are getting future clarification than 

can we put that in the motion. 
Kevin Thurman - suggested to delegate that to staff 
Sandra Steele - accepted amendment to delegate off street parking to staff. 
Jarred Henline – a lot of those things they will have to fix but some of those things they may not want to fix, 

maybe they will come back the way it is. Do we want to say bring us the final clean documents? 
Sandra Steele - thinks they are directing staff to work with the applicant on those items, and that is why it is 

to be continued, but she would like to see a clean document come back. 
Kimber Gabryszak – asked if it could continue it to a date certain, next meeting? 
Sandra Steele – replied that they weren’t sure how soon the applicant could come back with that.  
Kevin Thurman - our rules of procedure are not as stringent, not Roberts Rules. They should be allowed to 

ask a question to applicant during the motion. 
Krisel Travis – said they could come back with a clean copy rather quickly, depending on the motion, for 

instance a traffic study update may take longer. 
 
Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Jarred Henline.  Nay: Kara 

North.  Motion carried 5 to 1. 
 

A 2 minute break was taken at this time. 
 

 
 
 



Planning Commission June 12, 2014 8 of 8 
 

 11. Approval of Reports of Action 
 
Motion by Jarred Henline to authorize the Chair to sign and approve this Report of Action for 

Platinum Carwash. Seconded by Hayden Williamson.  Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, 
Jeffrey Cochran, Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
12. Approval of Minutes: 

1. April 10, 2014. 
2. April 24, 2014 
3. May 22, 2014. 

Changes were given and noted 
 
Motion by Sandra Steele to accept the minutes as amended for April 10

th
, April 24, and May 22.  

Seconded by Hayden Williamson.  Aye: Sandra Steele, Hayden Williamson, Jeffrey Cochran, 
Kirk Wilkins, Kara North, Jarred Henline.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
13. Commission Comments. 

 Jeff Cochran – commented that such a large agenda was hard to get through information before the 
meeting.  

 
14. Director’s Report. 

Kimber Gabryszak – she needed to gather some paperwork from Commission. She wanted to forward some 
emails concerning a bike committee.   She reviewed what would be coming up in future meetings.  She 
reviewed action items from the last City Council meeting.   

 
Meeting adjourned without objection by Jeff Cochran 
 
Adjourn  11:25 pm 



Scott Langford, AICP, Senior Planner 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 

slangford@saratogaspringscity.com • 801-766-9793 x116  •  801-766-9794 fax 

 

 

 

 
 

                     Planning Commission 

                                                                        Staff Report 
 

 

La Belle Dance Studio, LLC 

Conditional Use Permit for a Home Occupation 

June 26, 2014 

Public Hearing 
 

Applicant/Owner:  Jayden & Shelley Rollins 

Location:   3349 South Hawk Drive 
Major Street Access:  Wildlife Blvd. via Swainson Ave. 

Land area:     0.20 acres 
Land Use Plan Designation: Low Density Residential   

Zone:    R-3, Low Density Residential 
Zoning of Adjacent Parcels: R-3, Low Density Residential 

Current Use:   Single-family Residential 

Adjacent Uses:    Single-family Residential 
Previous Meetings:  N/A 

Land Use Authority:  Planning Commission 
Future Routing:   N/A 

Prepared By:   Scott Langford, Senior Planner 

 

 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
This is a request for review and approval of a Conditional Use Permit to operate a dance studio for up to 
30 children ages 3-12 years old (3 sessions of 10 children per day) as a home occupation.  The dance 

studio will hold classes Tuesday through Thursday mornings from 9:00 am to 6:00 pm. Classes will be 
held in the finished basement of the residence (see attached floor plan).  

 

The main potential impact to the neighborhood is an increase in traffic during drop-off and pick-up. The 
applicant has addressed this issue by providing an on-site drop-off and pick-up area on their private 

driveway and in front of their house along the public street.  
 

Recommendation:  
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing, take public 
comment, discuss the proposed conditional use permit, and choose from the options in 

Section “D” of this report. Options include a conditional approval as proposed, a conditional approval 
based on additional modifications and/or conditions, or a denial based on non-compliance with findings of 

specific criterion.  

 

 

mailto:slangford@saratogaspringscity.com


La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

2 

A. Background:  

 
Home Occupation 
Section 19.08.03 of the Land Development Code states that the Planning Commission is the land use 

authority in approving home occupations if: 

 
a. “the Home Occupation will result in an increase in traffic caused by more than five 

patrons, customers, vendors, or employees visiting the Home Occupation via 
automobiles or motorized vehicles on a daily basis; 

b. the Home Occupation will create a nuisance, as defined in Title 10 of the City 
Code; or 

c. more than five customers or vendors will visit or patronize in person the Home 
Occupation per day whether by foot traffic or motorized vehicles.” 

 

Conditional Use Permit 
The subject property is located in an R-3 zoning district. Section 19.04.13(3) of the City Code requires a 

conditional use permit for home occupations that meet the requirements of Section 19.08.03 (stated 

above).  
 

The dance studio has proposed a maximum total of 30 children dropped off and picked up on Tuesdays, 
a maximum total of 20 children dropped off and picked up on Wednesdays, and a maximum total of 10 

children dropped off and picked up on Thursdays. These students will be split into different groups with a 

total of 10 students per class. A detailed breakdown of specific times and classes is provided in Section B 
of this report.   

 
The proposed student numbers exceed the five patrons per day listed in the Code for administrative 

approval; therefore, a public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit is required in order for the applicant to 
receive a business license to operate a home occupation at this location. 

 

B. Findings: 
 
Home Occupation Findings of Fact 
Section 19.08.02 of the City Code states, “Proposed home occupations must be in compliance with the 
following performance standards to ensure that adverse impacts to others are minimized and that the 
residential characteristics are preserved.”  The Planning Commission has the duty to ensure that the 

proposed home occupation meets the performance standards listed in the City Code pertaining to home 
occupations, which are: 

 
Standard 1: “Floor Area. A Home Occupation may be located in any single family dwelling, or an 

accessory building to such a dwelling, but shall not occupy or use more than one-third of 
the finished square footage of the dwelling in any 24 hour period. 

 
Discussion: The home where the dance studio is proposed has approximately 2,618 
finished square feet.  The applicant has indicated that the preschool will occupy 275 

square feet, which equals approximately 10.5% of the home.  Per the finished square 

footage of the home the dance studio could occupy up to 871.8 square feet. 
 

Finding: The proposed home occupation meets Standard #1 as it will not occupy more 
than one-third of the finished square footage of the dwelling in any 24 hour period. 

 

Standard 2: “Building and Fire Codes. A Home Occupation, including Home Occupations located in 
accessory buildings, shall comply with all applicable building and fire codes. For 
example, if a Home Occupation is located in a garage, approval for occupancy must be 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

3 

given by the Building Official and Fire Marshall.” 
 

Discussion: The dance studio will be located in the basement of the residence, where 
there is adequate services and points of ingress and egress. However, the Fire 

Department has been to the home and performed a fire safety inspection. The studio 
passed without any violations. 

 

Finding: The proposed home occupation complies with all applicable building and fire 
codes.  

 
Standard 3: “Employees. Home Occupations may have no more than two on-premise employees who 

are not members of the resident family or household.” 
 
Discussion: The applicant, the resident of the home, has indicated that she will be the 

 only person running the dance studio  
 

Finding: The proposed home occupation will have no more than two on-premise 
employees who are not members of the resident family or household. 

 

Standard 4: “Parking. Home Occupations shall provide adequate off-street parking as required by 
Chapter 19.09. Vehicles used in the occupation, other than passenger cars, may not be 
parked on site, unless parked in the home’s garage or other solid structure to shield the 
vehicles from view. Further, Home Occupations may not be located in required parking 
spaces (whether covered or uncovered) under Chapter 19.09.” 
 
Discussion: Since there are no additional employees working at this home occupation, 

there is no additional parking needed for this dance studio.  The students will either walk 
or be dropped off by their parents; thus, additional parking stalls are not needed. 

 
Finding: The proposed home occupation provides adequate off-street parking as 

required by the City Code.  The drop-off area is adequate for the intended home 

occupation. 
 

Standard 5: “Outdoor Storage. Outdoor storage associated with a Home Occupation shall be subject 
to the same performance standards governing other outdoor storage on residential lots.” 

 

Discussion: There is no outdoor storage proposed in association with this home 
business. 

 
Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as there will be no outdoor 

storage. 

 
Standard 6: “Outdoor Activity. Outdoor activity may occur for a Home Occupation so long as the 

activity takes place in a fenced area and does not create an unreasonable disturbance to 
neighboring properties.” 

 
Discussion: The applicant has indicated that all of the dance classes will be located in 

the basement of the home. 

 
Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as there will be no use of the 

yard area. 
 

Standard 7: “Signs. A Home Occupation may display a nameplate sign attached to the home not 
exceeding four square feet solely for the purpose of identifying the occupation. The 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

4 

design and placement of a proposed sign must receive approval from the Planning 
Commission or City Staff. Signs that in any manner are electronic, electric, lighted, or 
back-lit are strictly prohibited.” 

 
Discussion:  The applicant has not indicated any signage will be used in association 
with this business. 

 

Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as the applicant has not 
requested any signage. 

 
Standard 8: “Hours of Operation. Home Occupations that receive customers, clients, or students shall 

operate only between 7:00 A.M. and 10:00 P.M., except for pre-schools or day care 
which may operate from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.” 

 

Discussion: The dance studio will hold classes Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday 
from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. The following is a more specific schedule: 

Tuesday 
10:00 AM    3&4 year olds 

4:00 PM      7&8 year olds 
5:00 PM      9-11 year olds 

 
Wednesday 

3:00 PM      3&4 year olds 

4:00 PM      5&6 year olds 
 

Thursday 
4:00 PM      5&6 year olds 

Finding: The proposed hours of operation for the preschool are in compliance with the 
hours of operation allowed by City Code. 

 
Standard 9: “Hazardous Materials. No Home Occupation shall generate hazardous wastes or 

materials that increase the danger of fire or cause fumes or odors that may be 
objectionable to neighboring residents.” 

 
Discussion: Staff does not anticipate the daily operation of this home occupation to 
produce any hazardous or nuisance materials that would be objectionable to the 

neighboring residents.  

 
Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as the typical operation of a 

preschool should not produce hazardous or nuisance materials. 
 

Standard 10: “Exterior Appearance. No Home Occupation shall alter the exterior of the home to differ 
from the colors, materials, construction, or lighting of the home before it was used as a 
Home Occupation.” 
 
Discussion: No alterations to the home are needed in order to operate the proposed 

dance studio 
 

Finding:  The proposed home occupation will not alter the exterior of the residence. 
 

Standard 11: “Retail Sales. Service related Home Occupation may conduct incidental retail sales 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

5 

provided that the sales do not increase traffic or violate any other performance 
standard.” 
 
Discussion: The operation of the dance studio does not include any retail sales. 

 
Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as the operation of the 

preschool does not include retail sales. 
 

Standard 12: “Traffic and Utilities Use. The Home Occupation shall not generate traffic or increase the 
demand for utilities that exceeds those normally associated with residential uses.” 

 
Discussion: Traffic during the drop-off and pick-up times will increase in the 

neighborhood, especially on Tuesdays when there are three separate classes held.  The 
applicant anticipates that the majority of the children attending the dance classes will 

come from the surrounding neighborhood and be able to walk to class. 
 

The hours of operation will also help reduce the impact on neighborhood traffic as most 
of the pickup and drop off times do not coincide with peak hour commute times in the 

morning and evening. 

 
The applicant has also indicated that the class times will not be the full hour so that there 

will be enough time between the classes for students to be picked up before the students 
of the next class will be dropped off. 

 

Finding: The impact of traffic associated with the dance studio has been mitigated by 
the hours of operation and by allowing a 10 to 15 minute time gap between classes to 

facilitate pick-up and drop-off. The Home Occupation will not increase the demand for 
utilities that exceeds those normally associated with residential uses. 

 
Standard 13: “Business License. A business license is required for all Home Occupations.” 
 

Discussion: The applicant has applied for a business license, which is on hold 
contingent upon the Planning Commission approval of the required conditional use 

permit. 
 

Finding: The City will issue a business license when and if the Planning Commission 

approves a conditional use permit in accordance with City Code. 
 

Standard 14: “Additional Home Occupations. More than one Home Occupation is allowed for each lot 
or parcel if the combined Home Occupations meet all requirements of this Chapter as if 
all were one Home Occupation.” 

 
Discussion: This residence does not have any other home occupations at the current 

time. 
 

Finding: Not applicable to the proposed home occupation as this is the first and only 
home occupation located at this residence. 

 

 
Conditional Use Permit Findings of Fact 
Section 19.15.03(2) states, “The Planning Commission shall review each application and make a 
recommendation to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application, or the Planning 
Commission may defer action if an applicant fails to appear at the public hearing or meeting or there is 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

6 

insufficient application information provided.”  Section 19.15.05(4) of the City Code states, “The 
conditional use shall meet the following standards:”   
 
Standard A: “The use will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the 

health, safety, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity, or 
injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity”; 
 

Discussion: The limited size (10 children max per session) of the dance studio and the 
proposed hours of operation should not alter the residential character of the 

neighborhood, and therefore should not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general 
welfare of persons residing in the neighborhood. 

 

Finding: The proposed dance studio will not be detrimental to the health, safety, or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity, or injurious to property or 

improvements in the vicinity. 
 

Standard B: “The use will be consistent with the intent of the land use ordinance and comply with the 
regulations and conditions specified in the land use ordinance for such use”; 
 

Discussion: Per the City Code, the proposed home occupation is being reviewed against 
the requirements for home occupations.  It appears that all the regulations specified in 

the City Code for home occupations are being met.    
 

Finding: The use will be consistent with the intent of the land use ordinance and comply 

with the regulations and conditions specified in the land use ordinance for such use. 
 

Standard C: “The use will be consistent with the character and purposes stated for the land use zone 
involved and with the adopted Land Use Element of the General Plan”; 
 
Discussion: Section 19.08.01 of the City Code states, “The City of Saratoga Springs 
encourages home-based enterprises as an appropriate form of local economic 
development.”   The proposed dance studio is a good example of a home occupation that 
is compatible with the general character of a residential neighborhood and the R-3 

zoning district. 
 

Finding: The use will be consistent with the character and purposes stated for the land 

use zone involved and with the adopted Land Use Element of the General Plan. 
 

Standard D: “The use will not result in a situation which is cost ineffective, administratively infeasible, 
or unduly difficult to provide essential services by the City, including roads and access for 
emergency vehicles and residents, fire protection, police protection, schools and busing, 
water, sewer, storm drainage, and garbage removal”; 
 

Discussion: The proposed dance studio will not require any increase in public services 
that are not typical of the standard residential home. 

 
Finding: No additional impact to public services will occur with the proposed preschool. 

 

Standard E: “The proposed use will conform to the intent of the City of Saratoga Springs General 
Plan.” 
 
Discussion: The General Plan states that the City Code shall provide review of home 

occupations to ensure that they are adequately regulated to protect the character of the 

residential neighborhoods. 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

7 

 
Finding: The proposed use will conform to the intent of the City of Saratoga Springs 

General Plan. 

 

C. Neighborhood Correspondence  
 
Per 19.13.04 of the City Code, each residential property within 300 feet of the subject property was sent 

a letter at least ten calendar days prior to this meeting.  As of the completion of this report, the City has 
not received any public comment regarding this application. 

 

D. Recommendation: 
 

After evaluating the required standards for home occupations and conditional use permits, staff 

recommends approval of a conditional use permit to allow for the La Belle Dance Studio on property 
located at 3349 South Hawk Drive, subject to the conditions listed in the “motion recommended section 

of this report. 

 
Motion Recommended: 
“Based upon the evidence and explanations received today and the findings listed in the staff report, I 
move that the Planning Commission approve a conditional use permit to allow for a home occupation for 

the La Belle Dance Studio on property located at 3349 South Hawk Drive, subject to the following 

conditions: 
 

1. A business license must be obtained prior to operation. 
2. The home occupation shall comply with all of the standards listed in Section 19.08.02 of the Land 

Development Code. 
3. No more than 10 children may attend any one class. 

4. Any other conditions articulated by the Planning Commission: 

 

 

 

 

    
 

Motion Alternative: 
“Based upon the evidence and explanations received today and the findings listed in the staff report, I 
move that the Planning Commission deny a conditional use permit to allow for a home occupation for the 

La Belle Dance Studio on property located at 3349 South Hawk Drive.  Specifically I find that the 
following standards and/or code requirements have not been met:” 

 

List Specific Code Standards and Requirements: 
 

 
 
 

 

E. Attachments: 
 

Exhibit A – Zoning / Location map 
Exhibit B – Aerial Photo 
Exhibit C – Floor Plan 
Exhibit D – Site Plan 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Site 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

10 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



La Belle Dance Studio Conditional Use Permit for Home Occupation 
Planning Commission Staff Report June 28, 2014 

11 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



      
Planning Commission 

Staff Report 

 
Preliminary Plat and Site Plan Amendment 
Hillcrest Condo’s Phase 3 
June 26, 2014 
Public Hearing 
 

Report Date:    June 19, 2014 
Applicant: Nate Hutchinson (Flagship Homes) 
Owner:    Hillcrest Road at Saratoga 
Location:   Approximately 1900 North Crest Road 
Major Street Access: Redwood Road 
Parcel Number(s) & Size: 41:581:0019; Approximately 5.98 acres  
Land Use Map Designation: High Density Residential 
Parcel Zoning: 14, High Density Residential  
Adjacent Zoning:  R-14, R-3, R-3 PUD, MU, A 
Current Use of Parcel:  Undeveloped 
Adjacent Uses:   Low and High Density Residential 
Previous Meetings: MDA review in 2002, site plan review in 2003, Phase 1 final plat review in 

2004, Phase 2 preliminary and final plat review in 2011-2013 
Previous Approvals:  8/13/02, MDA approval (signed 11/16/04, with a six year term)  
 10/14/03, site plan approval 

6/15/04, Phase 1 final condo plat 
 5/3/11, Phase 2 Preliminary Plat 
 1/4/11, Phase 2G Final Plat; 7/13/11, Phase 2H Final Plat 
 4/17/12, Phase 2I Final Plat; 10/2/12, Phase 2J and 2K Final Plat 
 8/20/13, Phase 2L Final Plat 
Land Use Authority: City Council 
Future Routing: Public meeting with City Council  
Author:    Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 

 
 
A. Executive Summary:   

This is a request for approval of the Preliminary Plat for Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3, located at 
approximately 1900 North Crest Road. The proposal includes 84 condominium units on 5.98 acres. 
Although the original Master Development Agreement (MDA) has expired, a new one is not required by 
Code and the Site Plan is vested.  

 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing, take public 
comment, and/or discuss the proposed preliminary plat at their discretion, and choose from 
the options in Section “H” of this report.  Options include recommendation to the City Council for 
approval with conditions, tabling the item to a future meeting, or a recommendation for denial.  

Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 1 -



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 2 -

B. Background:  An MDA was approved for Hillcrest Condominiums in 2002 and signed in 2004, with a six 
year term. The site plan was also recorded with the MDA. Section 4.2 of the MDA states “This Agreement 
shall continue beyond its term as to any rights or obligations for subdivisions or site plans that have been 
given final approval and have been recorded prior to the end of the term of this Agreement.” Thus, the site 
plan that was recorded with the original MDA is still in effect.  
 
Phase 1 included six buildings (72 units), and the clubhouse and was recorded in 2004. The project went 
under around 2007-2008 with an outstanding punchlist for Phase 1. The remaining undeveloped portion 
was picked up by the current applicant, Flagship Homes in 2010. When the current developer first met with 
the City the MDA was still active, but about to expire. The Code did not require a new MDA. Flagship 
Homes entered into a Development Agreement (DA) that required the completion of the outstanding items 
in Phase 1. This allowed them to continue to receive credit for the existing open space and amenities in 
Phase 1. The DA was recorded with Phase 2G and subsequent phases and allowed them to phase the 
Phase 1 punchlist improvements as they progress through Phases 2 and 3 of the development.  The 
project layout, unit count, and landscape plans generally match the original plans. However, some changes 
are being requested, specifically:  

a. The landscaping around the footprint of each building has changed. This was approved with the 
Phase 2 Preliminary Plat and is being requested for Phase 3.  

b. The orientation of one of the buildings and the surrounding parking has changed (building K on the 
original site plan, building 3O on the current plan).  

c. The round-about has been removed to allow for a layout that includes more guest parking. 
d. Modifications have been made to the parking area closest to the detention pond which has been 

revised to create better flow.  
e. They are proposing replacing two small tot lots with one larger tot lot in a more open area. The 

original site plan shows a tot lot between buildings F and G and one north of building K. On the 
new plan these have been replaced with a larger tot lot east of building 3S.   

 
The applicant is proposing the same elevations that were approved for Phase 2 (attached). 
 

C. Specific Request: The applicant is requesting approval of the Preliminary Plat for Phase 3 of the Hillcrest 
Condominium project. The Preliminary Plat includes 84 units with associated garages, parking, and open 
space. Phase 3 will also include a tot lot and outstanding punch list items in Phase 1 that were required in 
the DA that was recorded with Phase 2G and subsequent phases, as listed below (many of these items 
have already been finished):   

a. Construct the sidewalk from Phase 1 to Phase 3, at the clubhouse area (this is complete) 
b. Construct the playground at the clubhouse area and install the playground equipment and  

benches (this is complete) 
c. Construct the tot lot east of Building D (not yet complete) 
d. Complete the landscaping west of Building F (not yet complete) 
e. Complete the detention pond and landscaping (not yet complete) 

 
D. Process: Section 19.13.04 of the City Code states that Preliminary Plats require a public hearing with the 

Planning Commission and that the City Council is the approval authority.  
 
Staff finding: complies. After a public hearing with the Planning Commission the application will be 
forwarded to the City Council.  

 
E. Community Review: Prior to the Planning Commission review of the Preliminary Plat, this item was 

noticed as a public hearing in the Daily Herald; and notices were mailed to all property owners within 300 
feet of the subject property. As of the date of this report, public input has not been received. The City 
Council is not required to hold a public hearing for these applications.  

 



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 3 -

F. General Plan:  The General Plan recommends High Density Residential for this area. The Land Use 
Element of the General Plan states “Densities in the High Density Residential areas will typically range from 
14 to 18 units per acre while they may reach as high as 24 units per acre in limited situations.”  
 
Finding: consistent. The phase 3 plan consists of 84 units on 5.98 acres; resulting in a density of 14 
units per acre. The overall project is 228 units on 17.40 acres; resulting in a density of 13.11 units per 
acre. Thus, the proposed density is consistent with the General Plan.  

 
G. Code Criteria: The property is zoned R-14, High Density Residential. Section 19.04.18 regulates the R-14 

zone and is evaluated below.  
 
Density: Density in the R-14 zone shall not exceed 14 ERUs per acre. The proposed plans for Phase 3 
include 84 units on 5.98 acres; resulting in a density of 14.05 units per acre. The Hillcrest development 
consists of 204 units on 16.9 acres (17.4 acres minus 0.50 acres of sensitive lands), with an overall density 
of 12.07 units per acre and complies with this requirement.  

 
Permitted or Conditional Use: complies. “Multi Family Structures” are a permitted use in the R-14 
zone. This project consists of seven buildings with twelve units each. The proposed structures are a 
permitted use in this zone.  
 
Minimum Lot Size: complies. For multi-family structures where each dwelling is separately owned, the 
minimum lot size shall be based on each building rather than each individual dwelling. The proposed units 
are approximately 1,200 square feet in size and each building is proposed to be on a lot that is 0.54 acres 
or larger (see preliminary phasing plan). The units/lots comply with this requirement.   

 
Setbacks/Yard Requirements: complies. The R-14 zone requires front setbacks of 25 feet, multifamily 
structures require 10 feet between the sides of the buildings, and rear setbacks of 20 feet. For corner lots 
the side yard abutting the street is to be 20 feet. Accessory buildings are required to be five feet from the 
rear and side yards.  
 
The proposed plans meet the setback requirements, as further reviewed: Buildings 3P, 3Q, 3R, and 3S are 
located 20 feet from the boundary of the project, meeting the rear setback requirement. The proposed 
garages are located approximately 20 feet from the boundary of the project exceeding the requirement of 
five feet. The proposed garages are located more than five feet from the mains structures. The proposed 
multi-family structures are all separated by more than 10 feet, meeting the side yard setback 
requirements. For buildings 3N and 3M there is 15’ between the entryways and over 25 feet between the 
remainder of the buildings. Although the project will be recorded in phases, the setbacks were reviewed 
from the property boundary.  

 
Minimum Lot Width: complies. Every lot in this zone shall be 50 feet in width at the front building 
setback. For multi-family structures where each unit is separately owned, the minimum lot width shall be 
based on each building rather than each individual dwelling. The proposed buildings are 57’ x 106’ and 
comply with this requirement.   
 
Minimum Lot Frontage: complies. Every lot in this zone shall have at least 35 feet of frontage along a 
public street. For multi-family structures where each unit is separately owned, the minimum lot frontage  
shall be based on each building rather than each individual dwelling. The proposed buildings are 57’ x 106’ 
and front private parking lots that will serve the buildings. These buildings and parking areas are accessed 
from private streets.  
 
Maximum Height of Structures, Maximum Lot Coverage, Minimum Dwelling Size: complies. No 
structure in the R-14 zone shall be taller than 35 feet. Maximum lot coverage in the R-14 zone is 50%. The 
minimum dwelling size in the R-14 zone is 800 square feet of living space above grade. The preliminary 



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 4 -

plat plans indicate that they can comply with each requirement. These requirements will be reviewed 
further by the building department with each individual building permit application.  
 
Open Space: complies.  The R-14 zone requires 20% of the total project area to be installed as open 
space to be either public or common space not reserved in individual lots.  
 
The plans indicate the total project area is 5.98 acres with 2.14 acres (36%) of landscaped area that will 
be common area within the development. The definition for open space, found in Section 19.02, requires 
“park or landscaped areas that meet the minimum recreational needs of the subdivision.”  This phase will 
be joined with the existing Hillcrest HOA and will have access to the existing amenities on the site such as 
the playgrounds, swimming pool, clubhouse, and open space. In order to receive credit for the existing 
amenities in Phase 1, when the developer began developing Phases 2 and 3 they entered into a 
development agreement that required outstanding puchlist items in Phase 1 to be complete (see attached 
DA).  
 
Sensitive Lands: complies.  

• The R-14 zone requires that sensitive lands shall not be included in the base acreage when 
calculating the number of ERUs permitted in any development and no development credit shall be 
given for sensitive lands. The Hillcrest development consists of 204 units on 17.4 acres. After the 
detention basin (0.50 acres) is subtracted from the total the project has 16.9 acres to be used in 
the density calculation and results in an overall density of 12.07.   

• The R-14 zone requires all sensitive lands to be placed in protected open space. The sensitive 
lands are the detention basin and will be part of the HOA common area open space.  

• The R-14 zone requires that no more than 50% of the required open space area shall be 
comprised of sensitive lands. The detention area is approximately 0.50 acres (8.3% of Phase 3 and 
2.87% of the overall project area) and does not exceed this requirement.  

 
Landscaping: can comply. Section 19.06.07 lists specific landscaping requirements. The landscape plan 
was reviewed and approved with the original approval (attached).  The applicant is proposing to match the 
original 2004 landscape plan except for the landscaping around the building. The building footprint differs 
from the original plan and a new landscape layout was proposed and approved with Phase 2 and is 
attached. There will also be some changes as a result of their request to modify the original site plan. Staff 
recommends that complete and combined landscape plans be submitted with each sub-phase final plat; 
this has been included as a condition in Section “H” of this report.  
 
Second access: complies. This phase of development will loop the internal private roads and provide 
two points of access for the development. Building 3M and 3N will be the first sub-phase in Phase 3 and 
include this connection. This connection will bring the existing phases into compliance with the current 
code, Section 19.12.06. The private roads in the development access onto Hillcrest Drive which connects to 
Harvest Hills Boulevard and Redwood Road.  
 
Parking: complies. 2.25 spaces per unit is required for multi-family units, including one in an enclosed 
garage. Phase 3 indicates 84 units which requires 189 total parking stalls (including 84 enclosed parking 
stalls). The plans indicate 72 single car garages, and 12 of the garages for building M are being 
constructed with Plat 2L and are included on those plans.  In addition there are 114 unenclosed stalls; 
however, the two of the stalls between Buildings 3O and 3N need to be removed since there are 11 stalls 
in a row in this location. This will reduce the total unenclosed stalls to 112, which meets the requirement.  
 
Phasing plan: can comply. Section 19.12.02 (6) requires that when a development is proposed to occur 
in stages, then the open space or recreational facilities shall be developed in proportion to the number of 
dwellings intended to be developed during any stage of construction. The phasing plan requires approval 
by the City Council.  
 



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 5 -

Existing Phasing: The clubhouse and swimming pool have been in place in Phase 1 for several years, Phase 
2 has a tot lot, and Phase 3 includes a future tot lot. Each phase includes or has included common area 
open space and the amenities are to be shared by residents of all phases.  
 
Proposed sub-phasing: Phase 3 proposes five sub-phases (see attached phasing plan). The phases have 
been designed to include a proportionate share of open space in each sub-phase. This phasing plan 
requires approval by the City Council.  
 

H. Recommendation and Alternatives: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review the proposed Preliminary Plat and Site Plan 
Amendment, discuss any public input received at their discretion, and make the following motion:  

  
Recommended Motion: 
I move to recommend approval to the City Council of the Preliminary Plat and Site Plan Amendment for 
Hillcrest Condominiums, Phase 3, located at approximately 1900 North Crest Road, based on the findings 
and conditions listed below:  
 
Findings: 

1. Prior to the Planning Commission review of the Preliminary Plat, this item was noticed as a public 
hearing in the Daily Herald; and notices were mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property. 

2. The proposed preliminary plat and site plan amendment is consistent with the General Plan as 
explained in the findings in Section “F” of this report, which findings are incorporated herein by this 
reference.   

3. The proposed preliminary plat and site plan amendment meets or can conditionally meet all the 
requirements in the Land Development Code as explained in the findings in Section “G” of this 
report, which findings are incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
Conditions 

1. That all requirements of the City Engineer be met, including those listed in the attached report. 
2. That all requirements of the City Fire Chief be met.  
3. The Site Plan is amended as proposed. 
4. The phasing plan for Phase 3 is approved as proposed.  
5. The following amenities shall be installed with Phase 3:  

i. Construct the tot lot east of Building D  
ii. Complete the landscaping west of Building F  
iii. Complete the detention pond and landscaping  
iv. Playground north of Building 3O; details for the playground are required with the final plat 

application for Phase 3-O. 
6. Two of the parking stalls between Buildings 3O and 3N need to be removed since there are 11 

stalls in a row in this location. 
7. Complete and combined landscape plans shall be submitted with each sub-phase final plat 

application. 
8. Any other conditions as articulated by the Planning Commission: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Alternative Motions: 
 
Alternative Motion A 
“I move to continue the item to another meeting, with direction to the applicant and Staff on information 
and / or changes needed to render a decision, as follows:  
 
 



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com 

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

- 6 -

 
 
 
Alternative Motion B 
“Based upon the analysis in the Staff Report and information received from the public, I move that the 
Planning Commission recommend to the City Council denial of the proposed preliminary plat and site plan 
amendment, located at approximately 1900 North Crest Road. “ 
 
List findings for denial: 
 
 
 
 

 
I. Exhibits:   

 
A. Engineering Staff Report  
B. Location Map 
C. Phase 2G DA 
D. Original Site Plan and Landscape Plan 
E. Landscape Plans around Building Footprint (revised with Phase 2 for new building footprint) 
F. Preliminary Plat 
G. Phasing Plan  
H. Building Elevations 
 



 

City Council 
Staff Report 
 
Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer  
Subject:  Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3 
Date: June 26, 2014 
Type of Item:   Preliminary Plat Approval 
 
 
Description: 
A. Topic:    The Applicant has submitted a preliminary plat application. Staff has reviewed the 

submittal and provides the following recommendations. 
 
B. Background: 
 

Applicant:  Nate Hutchinson (Flagship Homes) 
Request:  Preliminary Plat Approval 
Location:  Approximately 1900 North Crest Road 
Acreage:  5.98 acres – 84 Condominium units 

 
C. Recommendation:  Staff recommends the approval of preliminary plat subject to the following 

conditions: 
 
D. Conditions:   

 
A. The developer shall prepare final construction drawings as outlined in the City’s standards 

and specifications and receive approval from the City Engineer on those drawings prior to 
commencing construction. 
 

B. Developer shall bury and/or relocate any power lines or other overhead distribution lines 
that are within or adjacent to this plat.    

   
C. All roads shall be designed and constructed to City standards and shall incorporate all 

geotechnical recommendations as per the applicable soils report. 
 
D. Developer shall provide end of road and end of sidewalk signs per MUTCD at all applicable 

locations. 
 
E. Developer shall provide a finished grading plan for all roads and lots and shall stabilize and 

reseed all disturbed areas. 
 
F. Developer shall provide plans for and complete all improvements within pedestrian 

corridors. 
 
G. Meet all engineering conditions and requirements as well as all Land Development Code 

requirements in the preparation of the final plat and construction drawings.  All 
application fees are to be paid according to current fee schedules. 



 
H. All review comments and redlines provided by the City Engineer during the preliminary 

process are to be complied with and implemented into the final plat and construction 
plans. 

 
I. Developer shall prepare and submit easements for all public facilities not located in the 

public right-of-way. No Utility main, not including laterals, shall be within 10’ of any 
building or foundation or structure to ensure there is adequate room for access for future 
maintenance needs. 

 
J. Final plats and plans shall include an Erosion Control Plan that complies with all City, 

UPDES and NPDES storm water pollution prevention requirements. Project must meet the 
City Ordinance for Storm Water release (0.2 cfs/acre for all developed property) and shall 
identify an acceptable location for storm water detention. All storm water must be 
cleaned as per City standards to remove 80% of Total Suspended Solids and all 
hydrocarbons and floatables. 

 
K. Project shall comply with all ADA standards and requirements. 
 
L. Developer shall ensure that private roads meet the City standard private road cross 

sections for this zone.  Roads shall also meet minimum curve radii. 
 
M. Developer shall improve all common areas and open spaces and shall indicate on the plat 

that these will be dedicated to and maintained by the HOA. All landscaped areas will 
require complete landscaping and irrigation plans. 

 
N. Developer shall protect all existing utility infrastructure, a 12’ paved access must be 

provide to all manholes that are outside the ROW. 
 

O. Developer shall ensure there is sufficient capacity in the existing storm water detention 
pond for the complete Hillcrest Condo’s project including phases 1,2, and 3. Developer 
shall make any modifications necessary to provide adequate capacity, to ensure the pond 
meets all current design standards, that outflow peak flows and water quality meet city 
standards. 
 

P. Developer shall verify utility infrastructure in phases 1 and 2 have sufficient capacity to 
support the proposed uses in phase 3 with no reduction in the level of service to existing 
residents. 

 
Q. Developer shall commit to completing those punch list items in Phase 1 associated with 

Plat/Building L as directed by the City and as outlined in the development agreement. 
 

R. Final plat shall designate all common areas as utility easements for the City of Saratoga 
Springs. 

 
 
 



 

LOCATION / ZONING MAP, PROPERTY IS ZONED R‐14
 



scarroll
Text Box
Exhibit A, approved site plan



scarroll
Text Box
approved landscape plans, 1 of 4



scarroll
Text Box
approved landscape plans, 2 of 4



scarroll
Text Box
approved landscape plans, 3 of 4



scarroll
Text Box
approved landscape plans, 4 of 4



scarroll
Text Box
landscape plan around building footprint, modified because the building footprint differs from Phase 1



scarroll
Text Box
Preliminary Plat, Page 1



scarroll
Text Box
Preliminary Plat, Page 2



scarroll
Text Box
Proposed Site Plan



scarroll
Text Box
Proposed Phasing Plan



scarroll
Text Box
Phase 2, approved elevations



scarroll
Text Box
Phase 2, approved elevations



 
Kimber Gabryszak, AICP, Planning Director 

kgabryszak@saratogaspringscity.com  
1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 

801-766-9793 x107  •  801-766-9794 fax 

      
 
 
 
 Planning Commission 

Staff Report 

Concept Plan and Rezone 
Harvest Heights 
June 26, 2014 
Public Hearing and Concept Review 
 

Report Date:    June 26, 2014 
Applicant: Fieldstone Utah Investors 
Owner: Blaine Walker, et al 
Location: Redwood Road and Fall Harvest Drive 
Major Street Access: Redwood Road 
Parcel Number(s) & Size: 58:023:0112, 27.658 acres 
Parcel Zoning:   Agriculture (A) 
Adjacent Zoning:  A, R-3, R-18, RC 
Current Use of Parcel:  Vacant 
Adjacent Uses:  Residential, Commercial 
Proposed Zoning:  R-4, R-6, and RC 
Previous Meetings:  None 
Previous Approvals:  None 
Land Use Authority: City Council  
Future Routing: Planning Commission and City Council  
Author:   Kimber Gabryszak, Planning Director 

 
A.  Executive Summary:   

 
The applicant, Fieldstone Utah Investors on behalf of the property owner, is requesting a rezone 
to the R-4 and R-6 Residential zones and to the RC zone, and input on a concept plan for a 77-
unit subdivision.  
 
The rezone also requires a General Plan amendment for the portion of property proposed for the 
R-6 and RC zones, from Neighborhood Commercial to Medium Density Residential and Regional 
Commercial.  

 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing to take comment on 
the rezone application, give the applicant feedback on the concept plan, and consider making a 
recommendation on the rezone to the City Council.  
 
Options for the rezone include a positive recommendation, negative recommendation, or 
continuance of the item, and are outlined in Section G of this report.  

Page 1 of 13



B. SPECIFIC REQUEST:  
The applicant is requesting a rezone of the parcel from A to R-4 and R-6 to allow consideration of 
a 77-lot subdivision consisting of small and medium single family dwellings. A portion of the 
property would also be rezoned to RC to accommodate potential commercial uses.  
 
The ~27 acre parcel would be rezoned as follows: 

• 2.54 acres of RC in the southeast corner of the parcel adjacent to Redwood and Fall 
Harvest, containing two developable lots and building square footage of 14,072 sq.ft. 

• 13.63 acres of R-4 in the western half of the parcel adjacent to Harvest Hills, with 37 lots 
• 10.83 acres of R-6 in the eastern half of the parcel adjacent to Redwood, with 38 lots 

 
C. PROCESS 

 
Rezone 
Section 19.17.03 of the City Code outlines the requirements for a rezone, requiring all rezoning 
application to be reviewed by the City Council after receiving a formal recommendation from the 
Planning Commission. An application for a rezone request shall follow the approved City format. 
Rezones are subject to the provisions of Chapter 19.13, Development Review Processes. 
 
The development review process for rezone approval includes a review of the request by the 
Planning Commission in a public hearing, with a formal recommendation forwarded to the City 
Council.  The Council will then hold a public hearing and formally approve or deny the rezone.   
 
Concept Plan 
Section 19.17.02 of the Code also states “Petitions for changes to the City’s Zoning Map to all 
land use zones shall be accompanied by an application for Concept Plan Review or Master 
Development Agreement approval pursuant to Chapter 19.13 of this Code.”  
 
The applicants have submitted a Concept Plan application for a 75-lot residential and 2-lot 
commercial subdivision. The process for a Concept Plan currently includes informal review of the 
plan by both the Planning Commission and the City Council. No public hearing is required, and a 
recommendation is not made.  

  
D. COMMUNITY REVIEW:  

The rezone portion of this application has been noticed as a public hearing in the Daily Herald, 
and mailed notice sent to all property owners within 300 feet at least 10 days prior to this 
meeting. As of the date of this report, no public input has been received. 

 
The Concept Plan does not require a public hearing. 

 
E. GENERAL PLAN:   

The site is designated partially as Low Density Residential on the adopted Future Land Use Map, 
and partially as Neighborhood Commercial.  
 
The General Plan states that areas designated as Low Density Residential are  

 
“designed to provide areas for residential subdivisions with an overall density of 1 to 4 
units per acre.  This area is to be characterized by neighborhoods with streets designed to 
the City’s urban standards, single-family detached dwellings and open spaces.”   

Page 2 of 13



The Concept Plan associated with the proposed rezone shows that the portion of the property to 
be zoned R-4 can be developed in a way that is consistent with this use in the General Plan. 
 

• R-4 rezone request: complies. 
 
The remainder of the property is designated as Neighborhood Commercial on the Future Land 
Use Map, which does not contemplate the proposed R-6 and RC zones. To accommodate the 
proposed rezones, the Future Land Use Map must be amended as well. The portion of the 
property proposed for R-6 will need to be amended to Medium Density Residential, and the 
portion of the property proposed for RC will need to be amended to Regional Commercial.  
 
Due to the amount of RC property in the city, and the lack of neighborhood commercial, Staff 
would recommend that the commercial portion of the property be rezoned to Neighborhood 
Commercial, not Regional Commercial. In this case, the commercial rezone request would 
comply.  
 

• R-6 and RC rezone requests: do not comply.  
• If NC instead of RC, commercial portion would comply.  

 
If the Planning Commission and Council support the proposed rezones, final approvals can be 
postponed and conditioned upon submittal and approval of the General Plan amendment(s).  

 
F. CODE CRITERIA:  

 
1. Rezone 
Rezones are a legislative action; therefore the Council has significant discretion in making 
decisions to rezone property. The criteria in Section 19.17.04, outlined below, are not binding 
and may act as guidance in making a rezone decision:  
 

The Planning Commission and City Council shall consider, but not be bound by, the following 
criteria when deciding whether to recommend or grant a general plan, ordinance, or zoning 
map amendment: 
 

1. the proposed change will conform to the Land Use Element and other provisions of 
the General Plan; 
Is not consistent as proposed; can be consistent if Land Use Element. The 
application conforms to the Low Density Residential category identified in the General 
Plan, but not to the Neighborhood Commercial category.  
 

2. the proposed change will not decrease nor otherwise adversely affect the health, 
safety, convenience, morals, or general welfare of the public; 
Consistent. The proposal places lower density zoning adjacent to existing low-
density residential, and places higher density adjacent to Redwood Road.  
 

3. the proposed change will more fully carry out the general purposes and intent of this 
Title and any other ordinance of the City; and  
Consistent. With appropriate conditions to ensure access, infrastructure, layout and 
appearance, traffic mitigation, trail connectivity, and other code compliance, the 
proposed development will be consistent with the goals of orderly growth and well-

Page 3 of 13



being.  
 

4. in balancing the interest of the petitioner with the interest of the public, community 
interests will be better served by making the proposed change. 
Consistent. With appropriate conditions to ensure that impacts are minimized, the 
allowance of additional residential development easily accessible from Redwood Road 
will be beneficial to the community.   

 
2. Concept Plan 
Staff has reviewed the proposed concept plan according to the proposed zone districts. If the 
rezones are not approved, the review will need to be revised.  
 
Allowed / Conditional Uses – complies. Single-family lots are an allowed use in the R-4 and 
R-6 zones. 
 
Density – complies. The R-4 zone has a maximum density of 4 units per acre and the R-4 
portion proposes 2.71 units per acre. The R-6 zone has a maximum density of 6 units per acre, 
and the R-6 portion proposes 3.51 units per acre.  
 
Lot Size – complies. The R-4 zone has a minimum lot size of 9,000 sq.ft., and the project 
proposes lots ranging in size from 9,011 sq.ft. to 12,929 sq.ft. The R-6 zone has a minimum lot 
size of 6,000 sq.ft., and the project proposes lots ranging in size from 6,000 sq.ft. to 8,418 sq.ft. 
 
Lot width / frontage: complies. The R-4 has a minimum lot width of 70 feet; initial review 
indicates general compliance, with potential for several cul-de-sac lots to need minor 
modification. The R-6 zone has a minimum lot width of 50 feet; initial review indicates general 
compliance. Further detail and verification will be done at time of preliminary plat.  
 
Open Space – can comply. The development appears to comply with minimum requirements 
of 15% in the R-4 zone and 20% in the R-6 zone by averaging the open space. The proposal 
exceeds open space in the R-6 but is short in the R-4; however, the combined overall open space 
provided does meet the minimum acreage. For landscaping in the RC zone, the lot sizes appear 
sufficient to permit the minimum requirement, which will be verified and required at time of Site 
Plan.  
 
Further detail will also be needed for slopes over 30% and other sensitive lands, to be verified 
through preliminary plat review.  
 
Setbacks – as currently proposed, it appears that the minimum requirements for the zones can 
be met by the proposal. Further detail and verification will be required at time of preliminary plat 
and site plan.  
 
Drainage – the City Engineer requires that drainage and stormwater information be provided.  
 
Slopes – there is potential for slopes over 30% to be disturbed. Further information will be 
required to ensure that Code compliance is met.  
 
Landscaping – not provided. Review and detail to be provided and addressed with preliminary 
plat and site plan.  

Page 4 of 13



Lighting – not provided. Lighting plans will be reviewed with preliminary plat and site plan.  
 
Parking – can comply. Parking for the single-family homes will be provided on individual lots. 
Parking for the commercial area will be reviewed more in-depth at time of site plan application 
and when more detail on tenants is provided.  
 
Access – complies. Second access is required for developments exceeding 50 units. The 
concept plan shows two points of access a minimum of 500 feet apart onto Fall Harvest, and a 
stub to connect with future development to the north.  

 
G. Recommendation and Alternatives: 

 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission give the applicant informal feedback and 
direction on the Concept Plan.  
 
Staff also recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing on the rezone, 
take public comment, discuss the rezone, and then choose from the options outlined below:  
 
Option 1 – positive recommendation as proposed 
“I move to forward positive recommendation to the City Council for the rezone of the ~27.658 
acre parcel 58:023:0112 from Agriculture to R-4, R-6, and RC as located in Exhibit 1 and 
proposed in Exhibit 2, with the Findings and Conditions below:” 

 
Findings  
1. The rezone complies with Section 19.17.04 of the Code as articulated in Section F of 

the staff report and which section is incorporated herein by reference. Specifically: 
a. With conditions to modify the Land Use Element, the proposal will be 

consistent with the Future Land Use Map.  
b. The proposed change will not decrease nor otherwise adversely affect the 

health, safety, convenience, morals, or general welfare of the public.  
c. With appropriate conditions to ensure access, infrastructure, layout and 

appearance, traffic mitigation, trail connectivity, and other code compliance, 
the proposed development will be consistent with the goals of orderly growth 
and well-being.  

d. With appropriate conditions to ensure that impacts are minimized, the 
allowance of additional residential development easily accessible from 
Redwood Road will be beneficial to the community.   

 
Conditions: 
1. The final decision on the rezone shall be postponed until required General Plan 

amendments are applied for and approved.  
2. Any conditions added by the Commission. __________________________________ 
3. ____________________________________________________________________ 

 
Option 2 – positive recommendation with modifications to NC instead of RC 
“I move to forward positive recommendation to the City Council for the rezone of the ~27.658 
acre parcel 58:023:0112 from Agriculture to R-4, R-6, and Neighborhood Commercial for the area 
identified as RC, as located in Exhibit 1 and outlined in Exhibit 2, with the Findings and 
Conditions below:” 

Page 5 of 13



 
Findings  
1. The rezone complies with Section 19.17.04 of the Code as articulated in Section F of 

the staff report and which section is incorporated herein by reference. Specifically: 
a. With conditions to postpone the rezone until the Land Use Element is amended 

from NC to Medium Density Residential, the R-6 portion of the proposal will be 
consistent with the Future Land Use Map.  

b. With conditions to modify the rezone request from RC to NC for the 
commercial portion, the commercial rezone will be consistent with the Future 
Land Use Map.  

c. The proposed change will not decrease nor otherwise adversely affect the 
health, safety, convenience, morals, or general welfare of the public.  

d. With appropriate conditions to ensure access, infrastructure, layout and 
appearance, traffic mitigation, trail connectivity, and other code compliance, 
the proposed development will be consistent with the goals of orderly growth 
and well-being.  

e. With appropriate conditions to ensure that impacts are minimized, the 
allowance of additional residential development easily accessible from 
Redwood Road will be beneficial to the community.   

 
Conditions: 
1. The final decision on the rezone shall be postponed until the related General Plan 

amendment is applied for and approved.  
2. Any conditions added by the Commission. __________________________________ 
3. ____________________________________________________________________ 

  
Option 3 – continuance 
“I move to continue the rezone to another meeting, with direction to the applicant and Staff on 
information and / or changes needed to render a decision, as follows:  
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
Option 4 – negative recommendation 
“I move to forward a negative recommendation to the City Council for the rezone of the ~27.658 
acre parcel 58:023:0112 from Agriculture to R-4, R-6, and RC as located in Exhibit 1, with the 
Findings below: 

 
1. The application is not consistent with the Land Use Element of the General Plan. 
2. Any other findings as articulated by the Commission: 

______________________________________________________________  
 
H. Exhibits:   

1. Location & Zone Map    (page 7) 
2. Future Lane Use Map    (page 8) 
3. Existing Conditions     (page 9) 
4. Applicant Letter     (page 10) 
5. Proposed Concept Plan    (page 11) 
6. City Engineer’s Report    (pages 12-13) 

Page 6 of 13



Page 7 of 13

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit 1Location / Zone



Page 8 of 13

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit 2Future Land Use



Page 9 of 13

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit 3Existing Conditions



May 14th, 2014 
 

Zoning Application Letter 
 
 
Saratoga Springs City Planning Staff, 

Fieldstone has conducted operations in homebuilding, land development, land entitlement and related 

business since 1981. Since its founding, Fieldstone has constructed and sold more than 35,000 homes in 

over 300 communities. Fieldstone would like to move forward with the rezone and concept approval of 

the 27.66 acre property located near Redwood Road and Spring Hills Dr, Parcel # 58-023-0112.  

The Current Zoning classification for the site is A (Agriculture). As the applicant we are requesting that 

Saratoga Springs change the Zoning to R-4 Single Family Residential, R-6 Single Family Residential, and 

RC Residential Commercial as shown in the Harvest Bluffs Concept submitted with this rezone request.  

The Saratoga Springs City General Plan map shows the site is planned for Low Density Residential to the 

west and Neighborhood Commercial along Redwood Rd. The city’s General Plan defines Low density 

residential as having an “overall density of 1 to 4 units per acre” and “it is estimated that a typical acre 

of land may contain 3 dwelling units per acre”.  In the area designated as low density residential our 

plan has a proposed density of 2.73 u/ac which is well below the 4 units per acre maximum. In addition, 

the site includes trails and open space also required in the plan.   

As for the easterly potion of the site, the terrain along Redwood Road is too steep for both access and 

visibility that would be typical for commercial development.  The difference between the existing grade 

of Redwood Road and the building locations is 20 to 30 feet (refer to attached survey). Commercial 

development along the Redwood frontage would require significant retaining walls and/or excavation of 

the site.  For this reason, as well as there is already substantial commercial ground already available in 

this corridor, we propose a down zone from the contemplated Neighborhood Commercial for all but 2.5 

acres to Low Density Residential; however, this portion of the site has a proposed density of 3.63 u/ac, 

which still complements adjacent zoning and meets the desire of no increased density and multifamily 

that’s been a hot topic in the city.  

The R-6 single family units will serve as a buffer from Redwood Rd to the east and the larger single 

family lots to the west. Turning the significant topography issues into a positive, the elevated lots over 

Redwood will also offer fantastic views of the valley. The proposed concept offers 17% open space, 

totaling 4.27 acres, split 20% among the R-6 single family and 15% among the R-4 single family. 

Finally, the southeast corner of the site will be left as commercial.  This is sensible since the access and 

topography work at this location and it complies with the General Plan. 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 13

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit 4Applicant Letter



50 100 200 300

SCALE: 1"= 100'

Page 11 of 13

saratogasprings
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 5 - Concept Plan

saratogasprings
Rectangle



 

City Council 
Staff Report 
 
Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer  
Subject:  Harvest Heights 
Date: June 26, 2014 
Type of Item:   Concept Plan Review 
 
 
Description: 
A. Topic:    The applicant has submitted a concept plan application. Staff has reviewed the 

submittal and provides the following recommendations. 
 
B. Background: 
 

Applicant:  Fieldstone Utah Investors 
Request:  Concept Plan 
Location:  Redwood Road and Fall Harvest Drive 
Acreage:  27.54 acres - 77 lots 

 
C. Recommendation:  Staff recommends the applicant address and incorporate the 

following items for consideration into the development of their project and construction 
drawings. 

 
D. Proposed Items for Consideration:   

 
A. Prepare construction drawings as outlined in the City’s standards and 

specifications and receive approval from the City Engineer on those drawings 
prior to receiving Final approval from the City Council. 

  
B. Consider and accommodate existing utilities, drainage systems, detention 

systems, and water storage systems into the project design. Access to existing 
facilities shall be maintained throughout the project. 

 
C. Comply with the Land Development Codes regarding the disturbance of sensitive 

lands, including 30%+ slopes. 
 
D. Incorporate a grading and drainage design that protects homes from upland 

flows. 
 
E. Developer shall provide a traffic study to determine the necessary improvements 

to existing and proposed roads to provide an acceptable level of service for the 
proposed project. 

 

Page 12 of 13

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit 6Engineer's Report



F. Project must meet the City Ordinance for Storm Water release (0.2 cfs/acre for all 
developed property) and all UPDES and NPDES project construction 
requirements. 

 
G. Developer shall meet all applicable city ordinances and engineering conditions 

and requirements in the preparation of the Construction Drawings. 
 
H. Project bonding must be completed as approved by the City Engineer prior to 

recordation of plats. 
 
I. All review comments and redlines provided by the City Engineer are to be 

complied with and implemented into the construction drawings. 
 
J. All work to conform to the City of Saratoga Springs Standard Technical 

Specifications, most recent edition. 
 
K. Developer shall prepare and record easements to the City for all public utilities 

not located in a public right-of-way. 
 

L. Developer is required to ensure that there are no adverse effects to adjacent 
property owners and future homeowners due to the grading and construction 
practices employed during completion of this project.   

 
M. Developer shall ensure that the storm drains system outfalls to an acceptable 

location approved by the City Engineer. 
 
N. The developer shall dedicate the 90’ half width of Redwood Road and install all 

necessary improvements along the Redwood Road frontage. 
 
O. Half width improvements shall be provided by the developer along the Fall 

Harvest Drive frontage and developer shall also dedicate the Right-of-Way. 
 
P. Developer shall ensure that all roads meet the City Standard requirements 

including minimum curve radii. 
 
Q. Developer shall connect to and extend the 12” culinary main and 8” secondary 

main.  
 
 

Page 13 of 13



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com • 801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

 
Site Plan Amendment to Westgate Shops B (Lot 8 of the ‘Saratoga Wal-Mart Subdivision’) 
Café Rio 
June 26, 2014 
Public Hearing 
 

Report Date:    June 19, 2014 
Applicant/Owner: Bill Gaskill, Amsource Development, Inc. / ARA Saratoga Income 

Properties LLC 
Location:   1513 North Redwood Road 
Major Street Access:  Commerce Drive 
Parcel Number(s) & Size: 66:242:0016, portion of 66:242:0006, ~1.10 acres 
Parcel Zoning: RC, Regional Commercial  
Adjacent Zoning: RC  
Current Use of Parcel: Existing retail building 
Adjacent Uses:   Zions Bank, O’Reilly’s Auto Parts 
Previous Meetings: 2007, Preliminary and Final Plat review 

2009, Site Plan Review  
Previous Approvals:  4/24/2007, preliminary plat approval for “Saratoga Walmart 

Subdivision” 
6/12/2007, final plat approval for “Saratoga Walmart Subdivision” 

 8/25/2009, site plan approval was granted for Saratoga Westgate 
Shops B 

Land Use Authority: City Council 
Future Routing: City Council 
Author:    Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 

 
 
 
A. Executive Summary:  

This is a request for review of a Site Plan amendment for Westgate Shops B (Lot 8 of the 
Saratoga Wal-Mart Subdivision), to allow for Café Rio. The site plan amendment includes 
proposed modifications to the existing elevations and additional parking stalls on Lot 6.  

 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing, take 
public comment and discuss the proposed Site Plan Amendment, and choose from the 
options in Section “H” of this report. Options include forwarding a positive recommendation 
with conditions to the City Council, continuing the application, or recommending denial to the City 
Council.  
 
 
 



B. Background:  
The site plan for Saratoga Westgate Shops B was approved in 2009 and includes an 8,400 square 
foot retail building and 41 parking stalls. This is a request to amend the site to allow Café Rio to 
occupy 3,465 square feet of the existing building.  

 
C. Specific Request:  

This is a request to amend the approved site plan by updating the elevations and adding parking. 
Café Rio will occupy the three center spaces in this building. Because restaurants are more 
intense uses than retail shops, additional parking is also required. The proposed elevations and 
plans for additional parking are attached.  
 

D. Process:  
Section 19.13.04 of the City Code states that Site Plans require City Council approval after the 
Planning Commission holds a public hearing and forwards a recommendation. The City Code also 
requires that an applicant hold a neighborhood meeting for any non-residential development 
proposal adjacent to developed property in a residential zone. This project is not adjacent to a 
residential zone.  
 

E. Community Review:  
Per 19.13.04 of the City Code, this item has been noticed in The Daily Herald, and each property 
owner within 300 feet of the subject property was sent a letter at least ten calendar days prior to 
this meeting.  As of the completion of this report, no public input has been received.  
 

F. General Plan:   
The Land Use Map of the General Plan designates this property for Regional Commercial uses. 
The Land Use Element of the General Plan states “Regional Commercial areas shall be 
characterized by a variety of retail users including big box retail configured in developments that 
provide excellent vehicular access to and from major transportation facilities.  Developments 
located in Regional Commercial areas shall be designed so as to create efficient, functional 
conglomerations of commercial activities.” 
 
Staff Conclusion: consistent. The site and nearby properties are currently zoned RC. The 
existing building is occupied by Yogurt Bliss, Dollar Cuts and Pizza Hut; these businesses will 
remain in the building. Adjacent businesses include Zion’s Bank and O’Reilly Auto Parts. The site 
can be accessed, via cross access easements, from Commerce Drive and Redwood Road.  Café Rio 
will add variety to the commercial uses in this location. The existing commercial subdivision and 
site have been designed to create efficient, functional conglomerations of commercial activities.  
 

G. Code Criteria:  
The exterior elevations will be modified and additional parking will be added. All other elements 
of the site plan will remain the same. The requirements for the RC zone are outlined in Section 
19.04.22. The parking requirements are in Chapter 19.09, and the Site Plan requirements are in 
Chapter 19.14. Pertinent requirements from these Chapters and Sections are reviewed below.   

  
Urban Design Committee Review: complies. Section 19.14.04 requires review by the Urban 
Design Committee (UDC). The UDC reviewed the proposed changes to the elevations on May 12, 
2014 and recommended approval as proposed.  
 
Topics discussed were the use of corten for the awnings, brown versus white stucco 
accents/trim, and the color scheme as it relates to the existing building. The Committee 
recommended approval of the colors and materials as proposed and were not concerned with the 
brown versus white stucco accents on the parapets/caps since this contributes to an individual 
identity for each space. The corten awnings, wood beam, circular wood projections, and 
proposed colors were supported as proposed. 
 

 - 2 -



Permitted or Conditional Uses: complies.  Section 19.04.22 lists all of the permitted and 
conditional uses allowed in the RC zone.  “Restaurant, casual” is a permitted use in the RC zone.  

 
Uses Within Buildings: City Council approval required. This section requires all uses to be 
conducted entirely within an enclosed building except for those deemed by the City Council to be 
customarily and appropriately conducted outside such as automobile refueling stations and gas 
pumps. The proposed business may include a few tables and chairs in front of the building to 
provide an outdoor seating area. The sidewalk in this location is 10 feet wide and will allow for 
this.   
 

Proposed Finding: The proposed outdoor seating is deemed to be customarily and 
appropriately conducted outside for a casual restaurant.  
 

Trash storage: can comply. Section 19.14.04 requires trash storage areas to be comparable 
with the proposed building and surrounding structures. The existing dumpster enclosure is 
constructed of concrete block and the gates are unfinished. It is recommended that the exterior 
of this enclosure be finished with stucco that matches the building and that the gates be painted 
as well.  
 
Parking: up for discussion. Section 19.09.11 (as approved by the City Council on June 3, 
2014) outlines the current parking requirements. A 3,465 square foot casual restaurant requires 
35 parking stalls. Based on the original approval for “retail sales”, 17 of the original stalls may be 
allocated to Café Rio, leaving a deficiency of 18 parking stalls.  
 
The applicant owns Lot 6 (directly west of this site) and would like to propose parking stalls on 
Lot 6 to make up the deficiency. Lot 6 currently has 10 existing parking stalls directly adjacent to 
the O’Reilly Auto Parts store (see last exhibit) plus 15 additional “temporary” stalls are being 
proposed, for a total of 25 parking stalls on Lot 6.  
 
As a side note, O’Reilly’s was originally approved as Checker Auto or Pad A of the Westgate 
shopping center site plan in 2006. This is a 7,000 square foot building and at the time of 
approval required 35 parking stalls; there are 44 parking stalls within the Lot boundaries for this 
site (Lot 9). Thus, the existing 10 stalls adjacent to the O’Reilly’s site that are within Lot 6 are not 
required for O’Reilly’s.  
 
The applicant is requesting that the 15 new stalls shown on the site plan be accessed via an 
existing curb cut and that they be approved as “temporary” stalls until Lot 6 is fully designed. 
This will allow these stalls to possibly shift in location once Lot 6 is ready for development. 
Engineering recommends a six inch asphalt berm around the edges to control storm water run-
off and recommends that it drains towards the access.  
 
The proposed 25 parking stalls on Lot 6 exceeds the requirement for 18 additional stalls. When 
plans are proposed for Lot 6 the applicant will propose a shared parking agreement. Up to 25% 
of the required parking stalls may be shared, per the requirements outlined in Section 19.09.10. 
At that time traffic data will be required from a professional traffic engineer. In the meantime, 
the applicant will create a cross-parking agreement between Lots 6 and 8; this has been included 
as a condition in Section “H” of this report.  
 
Signage Review: can comply. The applicant is requesting two wall signs. Wall signs are being 
requested on the east and west elevations of the building. The proposed tenant space for Café 
Rio is 60 feet wide, which allows for signs that are up 60 square feet in size with a maximum 
letter/logo height of three feet. Based on the information provided, the proposed signs seem to 
be larger than 60 square feet and may need to be reduced slightly. Staff recommends that the 
signs be approved with the condition that they may not exceed 60 square feet in size. The final 
approval may then be delegated to staff.   

 - 3 -



H. Recommendation and Alternatives:  
After evaluating the required standards for developments in the RC zone, staff recommends that 
the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing and make the following motion:  
 
Recommended Motion: 
“Based upon the evidence and explanations received today, I move that the Planning Commission 
forward a positive recommendation to the City Council for approval of the Westgate Shops B Site 
Plan Amendment for Café Rio, with the findings and conditions below: 
 
Findings: 
1. The proposed site plan amendment is consistent with the General Plan as explained in the 

findings in Section “F” of this report, which findings are incorporated herein by this reference.   
2. The proposed site plan amendment meets or can conditionally meet all the requirements in 

the Land Development Code as explained in the findings in Section “G” of this report, which 
findings are incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
  Conditions: 

1. That all requirements of the City Engineer be met, including those listed in the attached staff 
report. 

2. That all requirements of the Fire Chief be met.  
3. 18 additional parking stalls are required and are proposed on Lot 6. A cross-parking 

easement agreement shall be recorded between Lots 6 and 8.  
4. The 15 new stalls shall be approved temporarily until Lot 6 is fully designed and a site plan 

application for Lot 6 is approved. At this time these 15 stalls may be shifted in location.  
5. Per Section 19.09.10, when Lot 6 develops a shared parking agreement will be required. Up 

to 25% of the required parking may be shared, based on information received from a 
professional traffic engineer, and upon approval from the City Council.  

6. The existing dumpster enclosure shall be improved with stucco around the exterior and the 
gates shall be painted.  

7. The final signage plans shall be submitted to staff for approval and shall generally appear as 
presented in this report. Staff will verify that the wall signs do not exceed 60 square feet in 
size and that the letter/logo height does not exceed three feet.  

8. Any other conditions as articulated by the Planning Commission or City Council:  
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Alternative Motions: 

 
Alternative Motion A 
“I move to continue the item to another meeting, with direction to the applicant and Staff on 
information and/or changes needed to render a decision, as follows:  
 
 
 

 
Alternative Motion B 
“Based upon the evidence and explanations received today and the following findings, I move 
that the Planning Commission forward a negative recommendation to the City Council to deny 
the Westgate Shops B Site Plan Amendment for Café Rio. Specifically I find that the following 
standards and/or code requirements have not been met:” 

 
List Specific Code Standards and Requirements: 

 
 
 

 - 4 -



 - 5 -

I. Exhibits: 
 
1. Engineering Report 
2. Zoning / Location map 
3. Saratoga Wal-Mart Subdivision, Recorded Plat 
4. Proposed Elevations 
5. Site Plan 
6. Existing and Proposed Parking 
 



 

City Council 
Staff Report 
 
Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer  
Subject:  Café Rio               
Date: June 26, 2014 
Type of Item:   Site Plan Amendment 
 
 
Description: 
A. Topic:    The Applicant has submitted a Site Plan application. Staff has reviewed the 

submittal and provides the following recommendations. 
 
B. Background: 
 

Applicant:  Bill Gaskill, Amsource Development, Inc. / ARA Saratoga Income 
Properties LLC 

Request:  Site Plan Amendment for Westgate Shops B (Lot 8 of the Saratoga  
   Wal-mart Subdivision) 
Location:  1513 North Redwood Road 
Acreage:  1.10 acres 

 
C. Recommendation:  Staff recommends the approval of Site Plan  subject to the following 

conditions: 
 
D. Conditions:   

 
A. Meet all engineering conditions and requirements in the construction of the 

project.  Review and inspection fees must be paid and a bond posted as per the 
City’s Development Code prior to any construction being performed on the 
project. Impact and water fees are due when pulling the building permit. 

 
B. All review comments and redlines provided by the City Engineer are to be 

complied with and implemented with the approved construction drawings. 
 
C. All improvements shall comply with Saratoga Springs Engineering Standards and 

Specifications, most recent edition. 
 
D. Developer must secure water rights as required by the City Engineer, City 

Attorney, and development code. 
 
E. Submit easements for all public utilities not located in the public right-of-way. 
 
F. Developer is required to ensure that there are no adverse effects to adjacent 



properties due to the grading practices employed during construction of these 
plats.   

 
G. Project must meet the City Ordinance for Storm Water release (0.2 cfs/acre for all 

developed property) and all UPDES and NPDES project construction requirements. 
 

H. Final plans shall include an Erosion Control Plan that complies with all City, UPDES 
and NPDES storm water pollution prevention requirements. 

 
I. All work to conform to the City of Saratoga Springs Standard Technical 

Specifications, most recent edition. 
 
J. Developer may be required by the Saratoga Springs Fire Chief to perform fire flow 

tests prior to final plat approval and prior to the commencement of the warranty 
period.  

 
K. Submittal of a Mylar and electronic version of the as-built drawings in AutoCAD 

format to the City Engineer is required prior acceptance of site improvements and 
the commencement of the warranty period.  

 
L. Developer shall provide a letter from TSSD stating it is acceptable to share the 

grease trap with Pizza Hut and enter into a maintenance agreement with Pizza 
Hut.  Otherwise developer shall provide a separate grease trap. 

 
M. Developer shall berm around the proposed parking lot in Lot 6 of the Saratoga 

Wal-Mart Subdivision to prevent runoff from the undeveloped Lot 6. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

SITE

ZONING / LOCATION MAP, PROPERTY IS ZONED RC









 

EXISTING AND PROPOSED LOT 6 PARKING 



Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 
1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
scarroll@saratogaspringscity.com • 801-766-9793 x 106  •  801-766-9794 fax 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

 
Concept Plan 
Saratoga Springs South Stake Center (LDS Church Building) 
(Israel Canyon Stake Center) 
June 26, 2014 
Public Meeting 
 

Report Date:    June 19, 2014 
Applicant/Owner: Evans and Associates Architecture  
Location:   ~3300 South Village Parkway  
Major Street Access:  Village Parkway 
Parcel Number(s) & Size: 59:013:0034 (~5.14 acres) 
Parcel Zoning: R-3 PUD, Low Density Residential Planned Unit Development 
Adjacent Zoning: R-3 PUD 
Current Use of Parcel: Vacant 
Adjacent Uses: Single Family Residential 
Previous Meetings: Not applicable 
Previous Approvals:  Villages at Fox Hollow 2nd MDA, 4-16-2013;  
Land Use Authority: Review by Planning Commission and City Council is required 
Future Routing: Public meeting with City Council 
Author:    Sarah Carroll, Senior Planner 

 
 
 
A. Executive Summary:  

This is a request for review of a Concept Plan for the Saratoga Springs South Stake Center, 
located at approximately 3300 South Villages Parkway.   

 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct a public meeting and 
provide informal direction to the applicant and staff regarding the conceptual 
subdivision. No official motion or recommendation is provided for Concept Plans. 

 
B. Background:  

The concept plan has been reviewed by staff and this report provides direction to the applicant 
from the Development Review Committee (DRC). The Planning Commission and City Council will 
also provide direction at the public meetings.  
 
On February 4, 2014, the City Council approved a subdivision exception which allowed parcel 
lines to be modified outside of the formal subdivision process. The purpose of this approval was 
to allow the parcel lines to be moved to locations that match the proposed master plan and allow 
the LDS Church to purchase the property. A preliminary and final plat application will still be 
required, and this has been included as a recommendation in section I of this report.  
 



 - 2 -

 
C. Specific Request:  

This is a request for concept plan review of the proposed LDS church to be located at 
approximately 3300 South Villages Parkway. The site includes a church building and associated 
parking and landscaping. The applicant is requesting feedback on the proposed site lighting and 
landscape plan. In the past the City has allowed fixtures that differ from the City standard 
(attached) and has allowed less than 50% turf. The plans indicate 15% turf. In place of turf, the 
applicant is requesting large planter beds and the proposed plant count far exceeds the Code 
requirements. The landscaping is reviewed further later in this report.  
 

D. Process:  
Per section 19.13.04(6) of the City Code, a Concept Plan application shall be submitted before 
the filing of an application for Subdivision or Site Plan approval. The Concept Plan review involves 
an informal review of the plan by the DRC, Planning Commission and City Council to guide the 
developer in the preparation of subsequent applications.  
 

E. Community Review:  
There is no requirement to notice concept plans because the comments received from the 
Planning Commission or City Council are not binding.  Formal community interaction will occur 
once a public hearing is scheduled as part of the site plan and/or subdivision review. 
 

F. Review:  
“The Villages at Saratoga Springs (Fox Hollow) Second Master Development Agreement” (MDA) 
applies to this property. The infrastructure and open space requirements listed in that agreement 
are required to develop this site. The MDA requires a proportionate share of open space, roads 
and utilities. This will be reviewed further with the preliminary plat and/or site plan application(s).  
 

G. General Plan:   
The General Plan designates this area for Low Density Residential development and states “The 
Low Density Residential designation is designed to provide areas for residential subdivisions with 
an overall density of 1 to 4 units per acre.”  
 
Finding: consistent. The proposed plan consists of a church building which will offer religious 
services to the general public. Churches are listed as a conditional use in the R-3, Low Density 
Residential, zone and are thus anticipated uses within this land use category. 
 

H. Code Criteria:  
Section 19.12.03 of the City Code states: “All subdivisions are subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 19.13, Development Review Process”. The following criteria are pertinent requirements 
for Preliminary Plats listed in Sections 19.12 (Subdivision Requirements) and 19.04.13 (R-3 
Requirements) of the City Code. 
 
Permitted or Conditional Uses: complies.  Section 19.04.13(2 & 3) lists all of the permitted 
and conditional uses allowed in the R-3 zone.  Churches are a conditional use in the R-3 zone. A 
conditional use application will be required in conjunction with the site plan application.  
 
Minimum Lot Sizes: complies. 19.04.13(4) states that the minimum lot size for non-
residential uses is one acre. The subject property is 5.12 acres.  

 
Setbacks and Yard Requirements: complies. Section 19.04.13(5) outlines the setbacks 
required by the R-3 zone. These requirements are: 
 

Front: Not less than twenty-five feet. 
Sides: 8/20 feet (minimum/combined) 
Rear: Not less than twenty-five feet  
Corner: Front 25 feet; Side abutting street 20 feet 



 - 3 -

 
The setbacks indicated on the plans exceed these requirements.  
 
Parking: complies. Updates to Section 19.09.11 were adopted by the City Council on June 3, 
2014. This Section requires churches to provide 1 stall for every three seats and allows this 
requirement to be exceeded by more than 25%. The chapel can seat 286 patrons; thus, 95 
parking stalls are required. The proposed plans include 259 stalls.  
 
Fencing: can comply.  Section 19.06.09 requires fencing along property lines abutting open 
space, parks, trails, and easement corridors. In addition, fencing may also be required adjacent 
to undeveloped properties. Staff recommends that the applicant provide fencing around the site 
since the abutting property is undeveloped.  
 
Open Space: complies. The City Code requires a minimum 15% open space. This church will 
be serving nearby residents and park space has already been or will be provided within the 
nearby developments. The proposed plans indicate 30.37% landscaping.  
 
Sensitive Lands: complies. No sensitive lands exist on the site.  
 
Landscaping: up for discussion. The attached drawings (sheet C4.01, Architectural Site Plan) 
indicates 99,216 square feet of landscaping which requires 40 deciduous trees at 2.5” caliper, 33 
evergreen trees at 6 feet in height, 126 shrubs, and 50% turf. The code states “The City Council 
shall have the authority to adjust these standards as circumstances dictate.”  
 
The applicant is requesting the sod requirement be reduced to 15% sod for this site. In exchange 
for this reduction they are willing to exceed all of the plant count requirements and are 
proposing: 114 deciduous trees at 2” caliper plus 36 deciduous trees at 6’-8’ height, 26 evergreen 
trees at 7’-8’ height, 679 five-gallon shrubs, and 201 grasses.  
 
Staff recommends that at least 40 of the deciduous trees be increased in size to 2.5” caliper.  
 
Access: complies. The plans indicate two points of access onto a collector road. The north 
access will be a right in/right out access. The southern access is a full movement access and lines 
up with the intersection of Villages Parkway and Wildlife Boulevard.  
 
Lighting: up for discussion. Section 19.14.04(7)(iii) states “All streetlights and interior parking 
lot lights shall meet the City’s adopted design standards for lighting.” In the past the City has 
approved the attached light for institutional development. However, this does not match the City 
standard.  
 

I. Recommendation and Alternatives:  
No official action should be taken.  The Planning Commission and City Council should provide 
general direction and input to help the developer prepare for formal subdivision application. 
 
Staff recommends: 
 

1. That all requirements of the City Engineer be met, including those listed in the attached 
staff report. 

2. That all requirements of the Fire Chief be met.  
3. A conditional use application is required in conjunction with the site plan application.  
4. The infrastructure, roads and open space required by the MDA will be reviewed further 

with the preliminary plat and/or site plan application(s).  
5. Preliminary and Final plat applications are required to formalize the subject lot.  
6. That the Planning Commission and City Council provide the applicant with feedback on 

the proposed lights and landscaping.  
 



 - 4 -

 
J. Exhibits: 

1. Engineering Report 
2. Zoning / Location map 
3. Proposed Conceptual Site Plan 
4. Proposed Landscaping 
5. Proposed lights  

 



 

City Council 
Staff Report 
 
Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer  
Subject:  Saratoga Springs South Stake Center                 
Date: June 26, 2014 
Type of Item:   Concept Plan Review 
 
 
Description: 
A. Topic:    The applicant has submitted a concept plan application. Staff has reviewed the 

submittal and provides the following recommendations. 
 
B. Background: 
 

Applicant:  Corp. of Pres Bishop Church of Jesus Christ of LDS 
Request:  Concept Plan 
Location:  Near the Intersection of Village Parkway and Wildlife Blvd. 
Acreage:  10.818 acres - 1 lot 

 
C. Recommendation:  Staff recommends the applicant address and incorporate the 

following items for consideration into the development of their project and construction 
drawings. 

 
D. Proposed Items for Consideration:   

 
A. Prepare construction drawings as outlined in the City’s standards and 

specifications and receive approval from the City Engineer on those drawings 
prior to receiving Final approval from the City Council. 

  
B. Consider and accommodate existing utilities, drainage systems, detention 

systems, and water storage systems into the project design. Access to existing 
facilities shall be maintained throughout the project. 

 
C. Comply with the Land Development Codes regarding the disturbance of 30%+ 

slopes. 
 
D. Incorporate a grading and drainage design that protects homes from upland 

flows. 
 
E. Developer shall provide a traffic study to determine the necessary improvements 

to existing and proposed roads to provide an acceptable level of service for the 
proposed project. 

 



F. Project must meet the City Ordinance for Storm Water release (0.2 cfs/acre for all 
developed property) and all UPDES and NPDES project construction 
requirements. 

 
G. Developer shall meet all applicable city ordinances and engineering conditions 

and requirements in the preparation of the Construction Drawings. 
 
H. Project bonding must be completed as approved by the City Engineer prior to 

recordation of plats. 
 
I. All review comments and redlines provided by the City Engineer are to be 

complied with and implemented into the construction drawings. 
 
J. All work to conform to the City of Saratoga Springs Standard Technical 

Specifications, most recent edition. 
 
K. Developer shall prepare and record easements to the City for all public utilities 

not located in a public right-of-way. 
 

L. Developer is required to ensure that there are no adverse effects to adjacent 
property owners and future homeowners due to the grading and construction 
practices employed during completion of this project.   

 
M. Developer shall comply with all requirements outlined in the MDA. 
 
N. Developer shall extend the site plan down to the Villages of Fox Hollow 

Neighborhood “3B” plat boundary or wait for the Neighborhood 6-1 plat to be 
recorded. 

 
 
 



 

 

SITE

LOCATION / ZONING MAP, PROPERTY IS ZONED R‐3 PUD





IRR IRR IRR IRR IRR
IRR

IRR
IRR

IRR
IRR IRR

VILLAGE PARKWAY

R=2553.50'
L=163.29'

D=3°39'50"

CH=N1°06'41"W

CH L=163.26'
N 87°57'13" W

  53.50'

N 38°33'21" W

 43.00'

N 44°39'53" W

 89.61'

N 46°43'14" W

 80.00'

N 38°14'05" W

 81.93'
N 0°13'43" E  554.54'

N

 

4

0

°

5

3

'

0

7

"

 

E

  151.00'

N 57°16'51" E

114.73'

N 67°05'19" E

 72.34'

N 79°48'34" E

 153.52'

S 89°46'43" E  96.65'

R=2553.50'
L=85.47'

D=1°55'04"

CH=N1°40'46"E

CH L=85.47'

R=696.50'
L=123.30'

D=10°08'35"

CH=S2°26'00"E

CH L=123.14'

S 7°30'18" E

 102.36'

R=803.50'
L=133.95'

D=9°33'05"

CH=N2°43'46"W

CH L=133.79'

R=750.00'
L=646.62'
D=49°23'52"

CH=N26°44'43"E

CH L=626.77'

R=2457.00'
L=162.44'
D=3°47'17"

CH=N1°10'25"W

CH L=162.41'

IR
R

IRR IRR

N 72°57'52" E  96.50'

R=2457.00'
L=598.84'
D=13°57'53"

CH=N10°03'12"W

CH L=597.36'

R=2553.50'
L=627.91'
D=14°05'21"

CH=N9°59'27"W

CH L=626.33'

ALL REPORTS, DESIGNS, FIELD DATA, FIELD
NOTES, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS,
CALCULATIONS, ESTIMATES OR ANY

REPRESENTATION CONTAINED HEREON ARE
THE SOLE PROPERTY OF DIAMOND DESIGN AND

LAND SURVEYING UNLESS PREVIOUSLY
ESTABLISHED BY PRECEDENCE OR WRITTEN

AGREEMENT

52
43

 S
ou

th
 G

re
en

pi
ne

 D
riv

e
M

ur
ra

y,
 U

ta
h 

84
12

3
P

ho
ne

 (8
01

) 2
66

-5
09

9 
 F

ax
 (8

01
) 2

66
-5

03
2

di
am

on
d@

hd
su

rv
ey

.c
om

  w
w

w
.h

ds
ur

ve
y.

co
m

D
IA

M
O

N
D

LA
N

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
, L

LC

A
.L

.T
.A

. &
 A

.C
.S

.M
. S

ur
ve

ys

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ta
ki

ng

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 S

ur
ve

ys

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
S

ur
ve

ys

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

s

1 1

12 13
1411

IRR

12
12

13
13

”

”

” ”
”

”
” ”

”
” ”

”
” ”

” ”
” " ”

” ”
” ”

”
”





V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
April 11, 2014

C201

PLAN
GRADING & DRAINAGE

CONCEPT



V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
April 11, 2014

C202

PLAN
UTILITY

CONCEPT

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E
 - 

S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T 

C
20

3 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 



V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
April 11, 2014

C203

PLAN
OFFSITE UTILITY

CONCEPT

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E
 - 

S
E

E
 S

H
E

E
T 

C
20

2 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
February 10, 2014

SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

NORTH

KEYED NOTES

UTILITY COORDINATION

UTILITY REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL NOTES



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.1

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.9

1.3

1.8

1.7

1.2

1.1

1.2

0.9

0.5

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.6

2.4

2.5

1.7

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.6

0.9

1.6

1.1

1.2

1.7

2.4

3.6

3.3

2.2

3.6

2.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.9

1.6

2.5

4.0

4.3

2.7

1.8

1.1

0.9

0.8

1.0

1.9

2.8

4.4

4.3

2.8

2.1

1.3

1.4

2.2

3.0

4.5

4.1

2.6

2.0

4.7

3.4

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.9

2.6

3.7

3.9

2.7

2.1

1.3

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.8

2.2

2.8

2.8

2.3

2.0

1.6

1.7

2.2

2.4

2.8

2.7

2.1

1.7

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

1.2

1.5

1.4

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.5

1.9

2.2

2.2

2.0

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.4

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.1

1.1

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.5

1.1

2.0

2.3

1.8

1.1

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.7

1.7

3.2

3.7

2.3

1.3

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.5

2.0

2.3

2.3

2.1

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.9

2.1

2.3

2.0

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.8

2.1

2.1

1.9

1.4

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.8

1.9

3.7

4.5

2.5

1.2

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.5

2.3

3.2

4.3

4.5

3.4

2.5

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.8

2.4

3.3

4.3

4.4

3.3

2.4

1.7

1.5

1.4

1.6

2.2

3.0

4.1

4.4

3.5

2.5

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.6

1.4

2.5

2.9

2.1

1.2

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.7

3.3

4.9

7.6

8.0

5.3

3.6

2.0

1.6

1.6

2.0

3.5

5.1

7.9

7.7

5.1

3.4

1.9

1.5

1.4

1.7

3.1

4.5

7.1

8.2

5.5

3.7

1.9

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.7

2.0

1.7

0.9

0.8

0.8

1.1

1.7

3.3

4.9

7.6

8.0

5.2

3.6

2.0

1.6

1.6

2.0

3.5

5.2

7.9

7.8

5.0

3.4

1.8

1.4

1.4

1.7

3.0

4.6

7.1

8.3

5.5

3.7

1.9

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.0

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.8

1.1

1.4

2.3

3.3

4.3

4.4

3.4

2.5

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.4

3.4

4.5

4.3

3.2

2.4

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.5

2.1

3.1

4.2

4.5

3.5

2.5

1.6

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.0

2.2

2.0

1.9

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.6

1.5

2.0

2.2

2.1

1.9

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.8

2.2

2.1

2.0

1.5

1.2

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.7

1.5

1.6

1.4

1.7

1.7

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.7

2.4

3.1

3.1

2.4

1.8

1.4

1.4

1.7

2.4

3.0

3.2

2.7

2.4

1.8

1.8

2.0

2.6

3.2

3.2

2.6

1.9

1.4

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.9

2.0

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.9

3.3

5.7

5.3

3.1

1.8

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.9

4.7

6.3

3.9

2.6

1.5

1.4

2.1

3.5

5.8

5.7

3.5

2.2

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.5

2.6

3.6

3.5

2.4

1.6

1.4

1.8

2.0

1.6

0.8

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.4

2.6

4.3

4.1

2.3

1.4

0.8

0.8

1.2

2.1

3.7

4.7

3.1

1.8

1.2

1.0

1.6

2.7

4.6

4.6

3.0

2.2

1.7

1.4

1.4

2.1

3.6

5.3

5.0

3.2

2.0

1.8

2.2

2.8

2.5

1.4

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.2

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.6

1.0

1.6

1.9

1.4

2.2

2.4

2.4

2.1

1.8

1.4

1.4

2.4

4.9

8.3

7.6

4.1

2.2

1.9

2.7

4.3

3.8

2.0

0.8

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

1.8

2.9

3.3

2.4

1.5

1.3

2.3

4.7

8.1

7.3

4.1

2.3

2.0

2.8

4.3

3.7

1.9

0.8

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

4.3

4.8

2.9

1.6

1.4

2.1

3.5

5.1

4.9

3.2

2.1

1.9

2.3

2.9

2.5

1.4

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

5.1

5.9

2.9

1.4

1.2

1.4

2.5

3.4

3.4

2.4

1.7

1.7

2.1

2.2

1.7

0.9

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.1

3.7

2.4

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.6

1.8

1.9

1.7

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.5

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

2.4

1.9

1.1

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.9

1.7

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.6

2.3

2.5

2.0

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.7

2.5

3.4

2.9

1.6

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

1.1

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.6

2.8

4.7

4.0

2.0

0.8

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.3

1.5

1.5

1.1

1.1

1.3

2.0

2.9

3.0

2.3

1.6

1.8

2.5

3.6

3.1

1.7

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.4

3.0

2.1

1.3

1.1

1.7

3.0

4.5

4.5

3.0

2.0

1.6

2.1

2.4

2.0

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.1

4.7

2.8

1.6

1.4

2.1

4.1

6.9

7.1

4.2

2.3

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.2

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

5.1

5.9

2.8

1.4

1.3

2.0

4.4

8.3

8.5

4.7

2.3

1.5

1.1

0.8

0.7

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.7

3.3

3.8

2.5

1.4

1.3

2.0

3.6

5.7

5.8

3.7

2.1

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.3

2.2

2.6

2.0

1.1

1.2

1.5

2.6

4.0

4.0

2.8

1.5

1.0

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.3

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.4

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.2

1.1

1.3

1.8

2.3

2.3

1.8

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.6

1.1

2.1

3.5

3.3

1.9

1.2

0.9

1.1

1.6

2.9

3.8

2.6

1.4

0.9

0.7

0.8

1.2

2.1

3.6

3.6

2.3

1.7

1.4

1.2

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.4

1.1

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.8

3.3

5.9

5.4

3.1

1.8

1.3

1.5

2.8

4.5

6.5

4.0

2.5

1.2

1.0

1.1

1.9

3.3

5.9

5.6

3.3

2.0

1.2

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.9

2.8

4.0

3.8

2.9

2.1

1.7

1.9

2.8

3.4

4.2

3.2

2.6

1.5

1.4

1.4

2.1

2.9

4.0

3.9

2.9

2.0

1.2

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.5

1.9

1.9

1.1

0.8

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.7

1.0

1.1

1.7

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.9

1.8

1.6

2.0

1.9

2.0

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.4

1.8

1.9

2.0

1.7

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

1.1

2.0

2.6

2.3

1.5

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.0

0.9

1.1

1.8

3.2

4.3

2.9

1.4

0.7

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.8

2.0

1.9

1.8

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.0

0.9

1.2

2.0

3.3

4.3

2.8

1.3

0.6

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.6

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.6

2.1

2.8

3.5

3.7

3.2

2.5

2.2

2.1

2.4

2.9

3.5

3.7

3.2

2.3

1.7

1.4

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.3

2.0

2.3

2.3

1.7

0.9

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

1.6

2.0

1.8

1.2

1.4

1.7

3.1

4.4

6.6

7.2

5.2

3.8

2.6

2.4

3.4

4.5

6.4

7.3

5.3

3.7

2.3

1.6

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

1.0

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

1.4

2.5

2.7

2.0

1.5

1.4

1.8

3.2

5.0

8.0

9.0

5.9

4.1

2.6

2.4

3.4

5.0

7.8

9.3

6.1

4.2

2.5

1.7

1.5

1.1

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

2.1

3.8

4.1

2.5

1.6

1.4

1.7

2.5

3.8

5.2

5.6

4.2

3.2

2.5

2.4

2.9

3.9

5.2

5.9

4.5

3.7

2.9

2.2

1.6

1.0

0.7

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

2.0

3.7

3.9

2.4

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.3

2.8

2.8

2.6

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.2

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.3

3.1

3.2

3.0

1.9

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

1.3

2.3

2.6

1.9

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.9

1.8

1.8

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.7

1.8

2.1

3.0

4.1

4.5

3.2

2.1

1.0

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.5

1.8

1.6

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.5

1.9

2.2

2.2

2.2

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.5

2.2

2.9

4.1

4.7

2.9

1.5

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.9

2.5

3.5

3.8

2.8

2.2

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.3

2.1

2.5

2.6

1.9

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.7

2.5

4.0

4.5

2.9

2.0

1.0

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.2

1.1

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.7

1.0

1.7

2.5

2.7

1.9

1.1

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.2

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
February 10, 2014

SCALE: 1" = 30'-0"

NORTH

STATISTICS

Description       Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Calc Zone #1 1.3 fc 9.3 fc 0.0 fc N / A N / A

2.2 fc 9.3 fc 0.6 fc 15.5:1 3.7:1Parking Lot



V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
February 10, 2014



V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

ph
on

e 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
fa

x 
 8

01
-5

53
-8

27
3

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
February 10, 2014













LANDSCAPE PLAN

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
May 1, 2014

DARREN G.
WILSON

NO. 356187



LANDSCAPE PLAN

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
May 1, 2014

DARREN G.
WILSON

NO. 356187



PLANT COVERAGE TABLE

LANDSCAPE PLAN

V
ill

ag
e 

P
ar

kw
ay

 A
 N

ew
 M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 fo

r:

S
ar

at
og

a 
S

pr
in

gs
, U

ta
h

P
ro

je
ct

 fo
r:

R
ev

is
io

ns

M
ar

k
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Sheet

Sheet Title

Project Number

Plan Series

Property Number
HET-SAS-09-04 (Style A)

500-7418

13-66

Stamp

Date
May 1, 2014

DARREN G.
WILSON

NO. 356187



Planning Commission 
Memorandum 

Community Plan and Village Plan 
Legacy Farms 
Thursday, June 26, 2014 
Continued Discussion 
 
Report Date:    Thursday, June 18, 2014 
Applicant: D.R. Horton 
Owner: Suburban Land Reserve (SLR) 
Author: Kimber Gabryszak, Planning Director 
 
A. SUMMARY 

This is a continued discussion from the June 12, 2014 Commission meeting. At that meeting, the 
Commission reviewed the application, held a public hearing and took public comment, and voted to 
continue the decision to this meeting. In response to Commission direction, the applicants have made 
changes to the Community Plan and Village Plan and provided a written memo.  
 
The updated plans are online at www.SaratogaSpringsCity.com/planning, under “pending applications.” 

 
The public hearings were closed on June 12, 2014. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
review the changes, and make a recommendation on each plan to the City Council.  

 
B. JUNE 12, 2014 PC MEETING 

Key points from the June 12th public hearing are outlined below.  
 

Concerns Raised by the Public 
Key issues raised in verbal comments received included the following: 

• Asked for compliance with Proposition 6 limits on high density 
• Concern with small lots and congestion 
• Ensure Tickville Wash mitigation and flood/drainage impacts 
• Concern with traffic impacts 
• Concern with impacts to wildlife 
• Concern over fencing types and heights 
• Concern over trespassers using SSD pool and marina and amenities 
• Concern over sewer capacity 
• Asked for clarification for water use within the development and outside of the development 
 

Planning Commission Discussion 
Key points discussed by the Planning Commission included the following: 
 

• Sandra Steele 
o Comments are almost the same as 6 weeks ago; not corrected yet so going over again 
o CP Page 20, snow storage, concerned that on-street parking encouraged which doesn’t 

work in winter 
o CP Page 36, lighting should be comparable to City standards 
o CP Elevations, no duplex/zero lot line product, will require elevations with related plats 
o CP Page 98, diagram and verbiage don’t match, verbiage requires semi-private fence 
o Wants updated traffic study with new traffic counts 

Page 1 of 36



o VP Page 5, snow storage, concerned with storage behind parking, winter loss of parking 
o Extra parking doesn’t have aisle width for backing (25-29’ per CP) 
o VP Page 36, Code prohibits street name duplication 
o Concerned with product on the shared lane with rear entrances, not safe 
o Prefer that City not maintain along Redwood Road; if City takes it, then insist on semi-

private fencing in that area 
o Not supportive of lots accessing onto Sherwood, a collector, which is discouraged, 

suggested a redesign of Peachtree to reduce access onto Sherwood 
o Concerned with extra parking on streets counting as parking and the 18’ driveways 

• Hayden Williamson 
o Buffer, concerned about privacy fence there, need semi-private like in SSOA for safety 
o Along Redwood; south of project is maintained by SSOA so Legacy should maintain it 
o Recalls applicant promising cooperation with fencing, continuation of a 6’ wrought iron 

for the residents in northern SSD 
o Amenities, understand concerns of SSOA over pool etc., but not fair to require City to 

force other developers to provide amenities to solve SSOA’s issues 
o Likes that the pool is back but sad to see skate park go, a cool diverse alternative 

• Kirk Wilkins  
o Apologizes to builder for how treated by Council regarding the clubhouse and pool, it 

was a business decision and not the developer’s intent to deceive 
o Appreciates well prepared and thought out input from the residents, took detailed notes 

on input and will discuss when plat maps come; need to honor agreements 
o Asks for clarification on buffer and how it works (only exception asked for along a ~700’ 

stretch identified by applicant) 
o Redwood Road – HOA should maintain to keep consistency 
o If wrought iron fence was discussed, encourages applicant to honor it 

• Jarred Henline 
o Frustrated that ¾ of the comments were about one thing they can’t affect, the density, so 

question narrowed down to how can we make a good transition 
o In favor of doing the waiver of the buffer, in favor of pushing project along and having 

some faith it will go where it’s promised to go, and we get to decide that at every step of 
the way when they come in with a plat, and do the best we can to take care of both public 
concerns and developer rights 

• Kara North 
o Ok with granting the buffer waiver 
o Has been debating semi-private vs. private fencing 
o Discussed concerns over maintaining Redwood, and precedent for some locations to have 

City maintain, so not opposed to City maintaining it 
• Jeff Cochran 

o Has seen city change significantly since he moved here and that will continue 
o Will see more detailed plans and more chances to comment further but the general 

concept is not going to change too significantly 
 

C. June 12, 2014 Planning Commission Motion 
 
Commissioner Steele made the following motion:  

 
“I move to continue both the Community Plan and Village Plan to another meeting, with caveat that the 
public hearing has been closed, with direction to the applicant and Staff on information and / or changes 
needed to render a decision, as follows:  

Page 2 of 36



 
1. Correct all typos, numbers and percentages that don’t add up 
2. Correct fencing plan with what will really occur 
3. Correct street naming plan 
4. Bring back more of the updated traffic study 
5. Add notes for fire turnarounds in shared lanes and private streets 
6. Street lighting to match city standards 
7. Have staff verify that guest parking off the street can be required 

 
Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion.  

 
VOTE   (5 TO 1) 

 
  Jeff Cochran  AYE 
  Eric Reese  ABSENT   
  Sandra Steele  AYE 

Kara North NAY (Participating Electronically)  
  Jarred Henline  AYE 
  Hayden Williamson AYE 
  Kirk Wilkins  AYE 
 

D. Applicant Changes 
The applicants have modified the documents as summarized below and outlined in Exhibit 1:  

1. Typos – the maximum density on page 2 is corrected to 1055, the tables on pages 6 & 17 now add 
up to 100%.  

2. Fencing – the applicants are proposing open rail fence as discussed with adjacent neighbors in the 
southeast of the project, and are proposing privacy fencing along the majority of the project 
periphery 

3. Street names have been corrected 
4. Traffic information has been updated and provided to the City Engineer.  
5. Fire compliance has been added to the plat requirements. 
6. Language has been added to ensure consistency with the City lighting 
7. Language from the District Area Plan has been provided, permitting on-street parking to be 

counted toward the parking requirement 
 
E. Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review and discuss the revisions to the proposed Legacy Farms 
Community Plan and Village Plan 1, and choose from the options below.  

 
Option 1, Staff Suggested – Positive Recommendations  
“Based on the information and discussion in the staff report and memorandum and received tonight, I 
move to forward a positive recommendation to the City Council for the Legacy Farms Community Plan 
with the Findings and Conditions below:” 

Findings  
1. The application complies with the City Center District Area Plan (DAP). Specifically, the 

neighborhood type, required contents, density, and unit type are as permitted in the DAP.  
2. With appropriate modifications, the application complies with Section 19.26.05 of the 

Development Code as outlined in Section H of the June 12, 2014 Staff report, which section 
is incorporated by reference herein. Particularly: 

a. The application is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the General 
Plan, through particular emphasis placed upon policies related to community identity, 

Page 3 of 36



distinctive qualities in communities and neighborhoods, diversity of housing, 
integration of uses, pedestrian and transit design, and environmental protection; 

b. The 1055 units maximum does not exceed the number of equivalent residential units 
and square footage of nonresidential uses of the General Plan;  

c. The application contains sufficient standards to guide the creation of innovative 
design that responds to unique conditions; 

d. The application is compatible with surrounding development and properly integrates 
land uses and infrastructure with adjacent properties; 

e. The application includes adequate provisions for utilities, services, roadway 
networks, and emergency vehicle access; and public safety service demands will not 
exceed the capacity of existing and planned systems without adequate mitigation; 

f. The application is consistent with the guiding standards listed in Section 19.26.06, 
with the exception of an approved exemption from standard 5. 

g. The application contains the required elements as dictated in Section 19.26.07. 
 

Conditions: 
1. All requirements of the City Engineer shall be met.  
2. All requirements of FEMA shall be met. 
3. The Community Plan shall be edited as directed by the Commission.  
4. Any additional conditions articulated by the Commission: ___________________________.   

 
“Based on the information and discussion in the staff reports and received tonight, I also move to forward 
a positive recommendation to the City Council for the Legacy Farms Village Plan 1 with the Findings and 
Conditions below:” 

 
Findings  
1. The application is consistent with the guiding standards in the Legacy Farms Community 

Plan. Specifically, the density, unit types, block types, thoroughfares, and other standards are 
expressly as contained in the Community Plan.  

2. The application complies with the criteria in section 19.26.09 of the Development Code, as 
articulated in Section H of the June 12, 2014 Staff report, which section is incorporated by 
reference herein. Particularly: 

a. With appropriate modifications, the application is consistent with the adopted 
Community Plan; 

b. The range of density in the application does not exceed the total number of 
equivalent residential units dictated in the adopted Community Plan; 

c. For an individual phase, the density will not exceed the total number of equivalent 
residential units dictated in the adopted Community Plan unless transferred per the 
provisions of the Community Plan; 

d. The application is consistent with the utility, infrastructure, and circulation plans of 
the Community Plan; includes adequately sized utilities, services, and roadway 
networks to meet demands; and mitigates the fair-share of off-site impacts.  

e. The application properly integrates utility, infrastructure, open spaces, pedestrian and 
bicycle systems, and amenities with adjacent properties; and 

f. The application contains the required elements as dictated in Section 19.26.10. 
 

Conditions: 
1. All requirements of the City Engineer shall be met. 
2. All requirements of FEMA shall be met. 
3. The Village Plan shall be amended as directed by the Planning Commission.  
4. Any additional conditions as articulated by the Commission__________________________. 

Page 4 of 36



 
Option 2 - Continuance 
 “I move to continue both items to another meeting, with direction to the applicant and Staff on 
information and / or changes needed to render a decision, as follows:  
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
Option 3 – Negative Recommendation 
“I move to forward a negative recommendation to the City Council for the Legacy Farms Community 
Plan with the Findings below: 

 
1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
“I also move to forward a negative recommendation to the City Council for the Legacy Farms Village 
Plan with the Findings below: 

 
1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
F. Exhibits 

 
1. Applicant Memo dated June 18, 2014  (pages 6-8) 
2. June 12, 2014 PC Staff Report   (pages 9-33) 
3. Community Plan updated June 18, 2014  

www.SaratogaSpringsCity.com/planning under “Pending Applications” 
4. Village Plan updated June 18, 2014   

www.SaratogaSpringsCity.com/planning under “Pending Applications” 

Page 5 of 36



Memo	  of	  Clarification	  
June	  19,	  2014June	  17,	  2014	  
	  
	  
Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan	  
	  
Page	  2	  –	  deletion	  of	  typo	  for	  1155	  ERU;	  maximum	  number	  of	  ERU’s	  for	  Legacy	  Farms	  is	  1055.	  

Page	  4	  -‐	  Preliminary	  and	  Final	  Plat	  -‐	  item	  a	  will	  be	  changed	  to	  read:	  	  	  This	  Chapter	  does	  not	  superseded	  
IBC,	  IFC	  and/or	  any	  other	  	  life	  safety	  regulations,	  adherence	  to	  which	  is	  required	  for	  approval	  and	  
permitting.	  

Page	  6	  -‐	  Table	  1	  will	  be	  revised	  to	  add	  a	  column	  for	  open	  space,	  roadways	  and	  civic	  areas	  thus	  resulting	  
in	  a	  total	  percentage	  of	  100%	  

Page	  11	  -‐	  Item	  5	  will	  be	  added	  to	  clarify	  conditions	  for	  corner	  lots	  to	  insure	  a	  clear	  view	  triangle	  is	  
maintained	  and	  will	  be	  presented	  at	  preliminary	  plat.	  

Page	  17	  -‐	  percentages	  for	  open	  space	  and	  roadway	  will	  be	  added	  to	  match	  calculations	  on	  Table	  1;	  note	  
for	  open	  space	  has	  been	  added	  to	  clarify	  calculations;	  the	  line	  work	  for	  the	  boundaries	  of	  the	  BT	  layout	  
have	  be	  revised	  to	  comply	  with	  the	  added	  definition	  for	  regular	  blocks	  and	  irregular	  blocks.	  

Page	  25	  -‐	  plan	  key	  will	  be	  revised	  to	  show	  only	  BT-‐2	  for	  use	  of	  this	  thoroughfare	  

Page	  37	  -‐	  8D.	  should	  read	  “Shared	  Lane”;	  delete	  reference	  to	  Woonerf	  

Page	  45-‐	  a	  note	  will	  be	  added	  with	  language	  from	  the	  DAP	  regarding	  On-‐street	  parking.[1]	  

Page	  46	  -‐	  language	  will	  be	  added	  to	  reference	  an	  effort	  to	  match	  the	  style	  of	  lighting	  set	  forward	  in	  the	  
city’s	  lighting	  standard	  for	  all	  interior	  areas	  of	  the	  project.	  

Page	  47	  -‐	  the	  repetition	  rule	  will	  be	  revised	  to	  read	  -‐	  	  

Repetition	  

Legacy	  Farms	  should	  provide	  a	  variety	  of	  home	  styles	  on	  each	  street	  to	  create	  a	  diverse	  and	  interesting	  
street	  scene.	  Neighborhoods	  with	  little	  product	  variation,	  and	  architectural	  styles	  that	  are	  too	  
homogenous	  are	  not	  permitted.	  In	  order	  to	  ensure	  that	  street	  scenes	  are	  non-‐repetitive:	  

Single	  Family	  Detached	  guideline	  -‐	  

Single-‐family	  homes	  with	  the	  same	  floor	  plan	  and	  style	  combination	  shall	  not	  be	  built	  on	  
adjacent	  lots,	  or	  on	  lots	  directly	  across	  or	  diagonally	  from	  one	  another	  on	  the	  same	  street.	  
Additionally,	  single-‐family	  homes	  with	  the	  same	  color	  scheme,	  regardless	  of	  floor	  plan	  and/or	  
style,	  shall	  not	  be	  built	  on	  adjacent	  lots,	  or	  on	  lots	  directly	  across	  or	  diagonally	  from	  one	  another	  
on	  the	  same	  street.	  

Page 6 of 36

saratogasprings
Typewritten Text
Memorandum Exhibit 1		 Pages 6-8 

saratogasprings
Rectangle



Attached	  Residential	  guideline	  -‐	  

Attached	  residential	  unit	  buildings	  that	  have	  the	  same	  style	  or	  color	  scheme	  shall	  not	  be	  built	  on	  
adjacent	  lots	  or	  on	  lots	  directly	  across	  from	  one	  another	  on	  the	  same	  street.	  	  

Page	  75	  -‐	  Exhibit	  14	  will	  be	  changed	  to	  show	  that	  the	  joint	  use	  park	  will	  not	  be	  HOA	  maintained.	  	  This	  
will	  need	  to	  be	  determined	  through	  the	  joint	  use	  agreement	  that	  is	  required	  for	  this	  open	  space	  type.	  

Page	  83	  -‐	  Picture	  will	  be	  removed	  	  

Page	  84-‐	  91	  -‐	  The	  #	  symbol	  and	  corresponding	  note	  within	  the	  tables	  will	  be	  removed	  for	  clarity.	  	  

Page	  98	  -‐	  Item	  1a	  is	  being	  deleted	  for	  clarity	  (incomplete	  thought	  and	  sentence);	  	  Item	  	  1k	  will	  be	  
deleted	  unnecessary	  regulation;	  item	  1j	  is	  changed	  to	  a	  distance	  of	  20’;	  fencing	  map	  will	  be	  changed	  to	  
add	  42”	  metal	  open	  rail	  fence	  type	  along	  the	  border	  of	  the	  open	  space	  fronting	  the	  existing	  SSD	  houses.	  

Page	  99	  -‐	  graphic	  will	  be	  revised	  to	  remove	  “Woonerf”	  reference	  as	  well	  as	  “Duplex”	  changed	  to	  
“Twinhome”	  

Page	  102-‐104	  -‐	  Updated	  Memo	  from	  Stantec	  will	  be	  included	  with	  certain	  clarifications	  as	  directed	  by	  
the	  City	  Engineer	  -‐The	  update	  memo	  has	  been	  included	  and	  	  a	  request	  to	  meet	  with	  the	  City	  Engineer	  
upon	  his	  return	  has	  been	  made	  to	  clarify	  some	  of	  the	  items	  that	  have	  been	  added	  to	  the	  update.	  	  	  

Page	  111	  -‐	  117	  -‐	  Updated	  executive	  summary	  and	  deletion	  of	  school	  lane	  memo	  as	  follows:	  

The	  addendum	  is	  meant	  to	  update	  certain	  sections	  of	  the	  TIS	  while	  leaving	  others	  alone.	  In	  this	  
case	  the	  addendum	  that	  was	  submitted	  to	  the	  city	  engineer	  updated	  the	  following:	  

1.	  Executive	  Summary	  (1st	  6	  pages	  of	  the	  Addendum	  -‐	  this	  can	  replace	  the	  old	  executive	  
summary	  in	  your	  overall	  report)	  

2.	  Chapter	  3:	  Project	  Conditions	  (this	  includes	  a	  project	  description	  and	  trip	  generation	  and	  
school	  conditions)	  

3.	  Chapter	  4:	  Existing	  2013	  Plus	  Project	  (because	  we	  updated	  the	  trip	  generation	  to	  match	  the	  
new	  site	  plan,	  all	  of	  the	  plus	  project	  scenarios	  were	  updated)	  

4.	  Chapter	  6:	  Future	  2020	  Plus	  Project	  

5.	  Chapter	  8:	  Future	  2040	  Plus	  Project	  

6.	  Appendix	  B	  

7.	  Appendix	  D	  
	  

Page 7 of 36



The	  original	  TIS,	  dated	  Aug.	  2013	  is	  still	  valid	  for	  Chapters	  1,	  2,	  5,	  and	  7,	  as	  well	  as	  Appendix	  A	  
and	  C.	  

Definitions	  -‐	  add	  “regular	  block”	  and	  “irregular	  block”	  

Legacy	  Farms	  Village	  Plan	  

Page	  8	  -‐	  added	  item	  1.b.ii	  	  for	  constancy	  with	  DAP	  and	  CP	  

Page	  9	  -‐	  	  corrected	  the	  table	  for	  T4W	  to	  T4SL;	  changed	  lot	  width	  range	  to	  be	  20’	  to	  	  176’	  	  for	  T4	  	  

Page	  11	  -‐	  An	  updated	  legal	  description	  of	  the	  village	  plan	  area	  plus	  Tickville	  wash	  will	  be	  added.	  

Page	  12	  -‐	  Exhibit	  3	  will	  be	  updated	  to	  reflect	  changes	  made	  in	  the	  community	  plan	  document.	  

Page	  13	  -‐	  Exhibit	  4	  max	  ERU	  column	  will	  be	  removed	  to	  avoid	  conflicts	  with	  other	  areas	  of	  the	  
document;	  T4W	  will	  change	  to	  T4SL;	  some	  T4-‐SL	  areas	  in	  the	  village	  plan	  will	  be	  changed	  to	  T4	  resolve	  
issues	  within	  the	  document.	  

Page	  20	  -‐	  T4	  table	  revised	  for	  lot	  frontage	  20’	  to	  176’	  

Page	  25	  -‐	  correction	  to	  the	  product	  type	  in	  the	  exhibit	  -‐	  delete	  alley	  and	  add	  rear	  to	  loaded	  townhomes.	  	  
Limit	  graphic	  to	  show	  only	  areas	  of	  village	  plan	  1.	  	  	  

Page	  33	  -‐	  add	  graphic	  to	  show	  rear	  loaded	  condition	  with	  a	  driveway	  condition;	  Update	  parking	  standard	  
to	  require	  .25	  guest	  min.	  for	  areas	  that	  do	  not	  contain	  an	  18’	  drive.	  On-‐street	  parking	  can	  be	  counted	  to	  
meet	  this	  requirement	  for	  guests	  and	  will	  be	  verified	  at	  platting.	  

Page	  36	  -‐	  street	  names	  will	  be	  changed	  as	  follows:	  

Harmony	  Lane	  to	  be	  Creeksedge	  Lane	  

Harmony	  Row	  to	  be	  Evergreen	  Way	  

Mayapple	  Lane	  to	  be	  Silvermoon	  Lane	  

Mayapple	  Row	  to	  be	  Gooseneck	  Way	  

Page	  59	  -‐	  delete	  picture	  

Page	  64	  -‐	  Updated	  Memo	  from	  Stantec	  will	  be	  included	  with	  certain	  clarifications	  as	  directed	  by	  the	  City	  
Engineer	  -‐	  The	  update	  memo	  has	  been	  included	  and	  	  a	  request	  to	  meet	  with	  the	  City	  Engineer	  upon	  his	  
return	  has	  been	  made	  to	  clarify	  some	  of	  the	  items	  that	  have	  been	  added	  to	  the	  update.	  

	  

	  

Page 8 of 36



Kimber Gabryszak, AICP, Planning Director 
kgabryszak@saratogaspringscity.com  

1307 North Commerce Drive, Suite 200  •  Saratoga Springs, Utah 84045 
801-766-9793 x107  •  801-766-9794 fax 

Planning	  Commission	  
Staff	  Report	  

Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  
Legacy	  Farms	  
Thursday,	  June	  12,	  2014	  
Public	  Hearings	  
	  

Report	  Date:	  	   	   	   Thursday,	  June	  5,	  2014	  
Applicant:	   D.R.	  Horton	  
Owner:	   Corporation	  of	  Presiding	  Bishopric	  Church	  of	  Jesus	  Christ	  of	  LDS	  
Location:	   SE	  corner	  intersection	  of	  Redwood	  and	  400	  south,	  extending	  to	  Saratoga	  Dr.	  
Major	  Street	  Access:	   Redwood	  Road	  and	  400	  South	  
Parcel	  Number(s)	  &	  Size:	   66:058:0007,	  176.44	  acres;	  58:041:0185,	  5.497	  acres	  
	   Total:	  181.937	  acres	  
Parcel	  Zoning:	   Planned	  Community	  (PC)	  
Adjacent	  Zoning:	   	   PC	  and	  Low	  Density	  Residential	  (R-‐3)	  
Current	  Use	  of	  Parcel:	   	   Agriculture	  
Adjacent	  Uses:	   	   	   Agriculture,	  Residential	  
Previous	  Meetings:	   	   PC	  Work	  Sessions	  December	  12,	  2013	  and	  January	  9,	  2014	  
	   	   	   	   CC	  Work	  Session	  January	  14,	  2014	  
	   	   	   	   PC	  Public	  Hearings	  February	  13,	  2014	  
	   	   	   	   PC	  Work	  Session	  April	  24,	  2014	  
	   	   	   	   CC	  Work	  Session	  May	  6,	  2014	  
Previous	  Approvals:	  	   Annexation	  Agreement	  (2010)	  
	   Rezone	  to	  PC	  zone	  (2010)	  
	   City	  Center	  District	  Area	  Plan	  (2010)	  
Land	  Use	  Authority:	   City	  Council	  	  
Future	  Routing:	   City	  Council	  	  
Author:	  	   	   	   Kimber	  Gabryszak,	  Planning	  Director	   	   	   	   	   	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
	  

A. EXECUTIVE	  SUMMARY	  
The	  applicants	  are	  requesting	  approval	  of	  a	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  pursuant	  to	  Section	  19.26	  of	  
the	  Land	  Development	  Code	  (Code)	  and	  the	  City	  Center	  District	  Area	  Plan	  (DAP).	  The	  proposal	  allocates	  a	  
maximum	  of	  1000	  units	  of	  density	  to	  ~182	  acres	  within	  the	  DAP.	  	  
	  
The	  Community	  Plan	  lays	  out	  the	  broader	  guidelines	  for	  the	  development	  while	  the	  Village	  Plan	  provides	  
the	  specifics	  for	  the	  first	  phase	  of	  development.	  The	  application	  proposes	  the	  use	  of	  Form	  Based	  Code	  to	  
implement	  specific	  standards	  for	  blocks,	  subzones,	  unit	  layout	  and	  type,	  transition	  of	  density,	  building	  
setbacks,	  architecture,	  roadways,	  open	  space,	  landscaping,	  lighting,	  and	  other	  applicable	  standards.	  	  
	  
The	  Planning	  Commission	  held	  public	  hearings	  on	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  on	  February	  13,	  
2014,	  and	  voted	  on	  the	  proposals.	  Due	  to	  significant	  changes	  in	  the	  layout	  stemming	  from	  the	  relocation	  
of	  the	  school	  site,	  the	  applicants	  have	  requested	  additional	  hearings	  on	  the	  revised	  plans.	  For	  the	  
convenience	  of	  the	  Commission,	  significant	  changes	  to	  this	  report	  since	  the	  previous	  hearings	  are	  
highlighted	  in	  yellow.	  	  

Page 9 of 36

saratogasprings
Typewritten Text
Memorandum Exhibit 2		   Pages 9-33

saratogasprings
Rectangle



 2 

	  
Staff	  recommends	  that	  the	  Planning	  Commission	  conduct	  two	  public	  hearings,	  take	  public	  comment,	  
review	  and	  discuss	  the	  proposed	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  1,	  and	  choose	  from	  the	  options	  in	  
Section	  I	  of	  this	  report.	  Options	  include	  forwarding	  a	  positive	  or	  negative	  recommendation	  on	  either	  or	  
both	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  as	  proposed,	  forwarding	  recommendations	  with	  changes	  as	  
directed	  by	  the	  Commission,	  or	  continuing	  the	  hearing	  to	  another	  date	  with	  specific	  direction	  to	  the	  
applicant	  on	  information	  or	  changes	  needed	  for	  the	  Commission	  to	  make	  recommendations.	  	  	  
	  

B. BACKGROUND	  	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  	  
The	  City	  Center	  District	  Area	  Plan	  (DAP)	  was	  approved	  in	  2010	  following	  annexation	  of	  just	  under	  3000	  
acres	  into	  the	  City.	  As	  part	  of	  the	  annexation	  agreement	  and	  DAP,	  the	  2883	  acres	  is	  approved	  and	  vested	  
for	  16,000	  residential	  units	  and	  10,000,000	  square	  feet	  of	  non-‐residential	  density:	  	  

	  
The	  DAP	  has	  also	  approved	  Place	  Types	  ranging	  in	  density	  from	  5-‐75	  dwelling	  units	  per	  acre:	  

	  
(Note:	  the	  complete	  DAP	  can	  be	  found	  by	  visiting	  www.saratogaspringscity.com/planning	  and	  clicking	  on	  
“Master	  Plans”	  and	  then	  “City	  Center	  District	  Area	  Plan.”)	  	  
	  
While	  the	  DAP	  includes	  several	  conceptual	  scenarios	  for	  the	  distribution	  of	  various	  place	  types,	  both	  the	  
DAP	  and	  Code	  allow	  the	  place	  type	  for	  individual	  developments	  to	  be	  identified	  and	  finalized	  at	  the	  time	  
of	  Community	  Plan	  approval.	  	  
	  
The	  DAP	  does	  not	  specify	  how	  to	  allocate	  the	  16,000	  Residential	  and	  10,000,000	  s.f.	  of	  non-‐residential	  
development	  (total	  of	  20,620	  Equivalent	  Residential	  Units,	  or	  ERUs)	  to	  each	  phase,	  however	  there	  are	  
several	  methods	  that	  may	  act	  as	  guidelines:	  

Page 10 of 36



 3 

• The	  Traditional	  Neighborhood	  Place	  Type	  under	  the	  DAP	  would	  permit	  a	  range	  of	  900-‐5760	  units.	  
• Utilizing	  a	  “fair	  share”	  approach,	  imagining	  that	  the	  combined	  20,620	  residential	  and	  commercial	  

ERUs	  were	  allocated	  evenly	  across	  the	  entire	  DAP,	  the	  ~182	  acre	  Community	  Plan	  would	  be	  
eligible	  for	  up	  to	  approximately	  1300	  units,	  a	  density	  of	  over	  7	  units	  per	  acre.	  (Note:	  the	  DAP	  does	  
not	  require	  density	  to	  be	  evenly	  allocated	  across	  the	  property.	  Some	  phases	  will	  be	  denser	  while	  
others	  are	  less	  dense.)	  	  

• The	  Community	  Plan	  proposes	  block-‐specific	  limits	  for	  densities,	  further	  decreasing	  the	  potential	  
density	  range	  to	  842-‐1782.	  

• The	  applicants	  are	  requesting	  a	  maximum	  of	  1055	  ERUs,	  consisting	  of	  a	  maximum	  of	  1000	  
residential	  units	  and	  55	  non-‐residential	  unit	  equivalents	  in	  the	  school	  and	  church	  sites.	  	  

	  
C. SPECIFIC	  REQUESTS	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  

	  
Community	  Plan	  
The	  Community	  Plan	  covers	  the	  entire	  ~182	  acre	  project,	  and	  the	  applicants	  are	  proposing	  the	  Traditional	  
Neighborhood	  place	  type	  for	  the	  entire	  Community	  Plan.	  	  	  

	  
The	  applicants	  are	  proposing	  a	  maximum	  limit	  of	  1000	  residential	  units	  on	  the	  entire	  property,	  governed	  
by	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  The	  1000	  unit	  limit	  is	  well	  below	  the	  maximums	  achievable	  in	  the	  Traditional	  
Neighborhood	  place	  type	  and	  with	  the	  proposed	  Block	  Types.	  The	  applicants	  are	  proposing	  a	  layout	  and	  
distribution	  of	  units	  would	  result	  in	  approximately	  900	  residential	  units,	  but	  could	  be	  increased	  to	  1000.	  	  
	  
Village	  Plan	  1	  
Village	  Plan	  1	  covers	  the	  western	  blocks	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  contains	  ~50	  acres.	  Within	  this	  first	  
Village	  Plan,	  the	  applicants	  are	  proposing	  a	  maximum	  of	  309	  residential	  units.	  Village	  Plan	  1	  contains	  
several	  higher	  density	  blocks	  closer	  to	  Redwood	  and	  400	  South,	  and	  therefore	  
contains	  a	  higher	  proportion	  of	  the	  density	  than	  the	  remaining	  Village	  Plans	  to	  
come.	  As	  the	  project	  moves	  away	  from	  Redwood	  Road,	  future	  Village	  Plans	  
will	  transition	  to	  a	  lower	  density.	  In	  no	  case	  will	  more	  than	  1000	  residential	  
units	  be	  permitted	  in	  the	  entire	  Community	  Plan	  area.	  	  
	  
The	  layout	  presented	  to	  the	  Commission	  on	  February	  13,	  2014	  showed	  a	  
school	  in	  the	  northeastern	  portion	  of	  the	  development.	  Due	  to	  concerns	  of	  
the	  school	  district	  based	  upon	  recent	  experiences	  developing	  in	  Lehi,	  the	  
district	  has	  requested	  that	  the	  school	  site	  be	  relocated	  internally	  to	  the	  
development.	  As	  a	  result,	  the	  unit	  layout	  has	  changed	  significantly.	  The	  
applicant	  is	  proposing	  that	  an	  age-‐restricted	  senior	  community	  replace	  the	  
area	  formerly	  occupied	  by	  the	  school.	  	  

	  
D. PROCESS	  /	  HOW	  IT	  WORKS	  	   	   	   	   	   	  

	   	   	   	  
	   Section	  19.26	  of	  the	  Code	  describes	  development	  in	  the	  PC	  zone,	  and	  the	  

graphic	  to	  the	  right	  shows	  the	  hierarchy	  of	  the	  different	  plans:	  	  
	  

1. For	  a	  large-‐scale	  planned	  community	  district,	  an	  overall	  governing	  
document	  is	  first	  approved,	  known	  as	  the	  District	  Area	  Plan	  (Section	  
19.26.13).	  	  

• The	  City	  Center	  DAP	  was	  approved	  in	  2010.	  	  
	  

Page 11 of 36



 4 

2. A	  Community	  Plan	  is	  then	  proposed	  and	  approved	  (Sections	  19.26.03-‐19.26.08).	  The	  Community	  
Plan	  lays	  out	  the	  more	  specific	  guidelines	  for	  a	  sub-‐district	  within	  the	  DAP.	  	  

• The	  Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan	  will	  govern	  only	  the	  ~182	  acres	  of	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  
development.	  
	  

3. Following	  and	  /	  or	  concurrently	  with	  the	  Community	  Plan,	  a	  Village	  Plan	  is	  proposed	  and	  
approved	  (Sections	  19.26.09	  –	  19.26.10).	  The	  Village	  Plan	  is	  the	  final	  stage	  in	  the	  Planned	  
Community	  process	  before	  final	  plats,	  addressing	  such	  details	  specific	  to	  the	  sub-‐phase	  as	  open	  
space,	  road	  networks,	  and	  lots	  for	  a	  sub-‐phase	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  	  

• The	  applicants	  are	  currently	  proposing	  Village	  Plan	  1	  for	  the	  westernmost	  blocks	  (47.95	  
acres)	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  	  

	  
	   The	  approval	  process	  for	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  1	  includes:	  

1. A	  public	  hearing	  and	  recommendation	  by	  the	  Planning	  Commission	  
2. A	  public	  hearing	  and	  final	  decision	  by	  the	  City	  Council	  (19.26	  states	  that	  the	  process	  is	  per	  Section	  

19.17,	  which	  is	  Code	  amendments	  /	  rezones,	  and	  requires	  hearings	  with	  the	  Council.)	  
	  

E. COMMUNITY	  REVIEW	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  	  
These	  items	  were	  noticed	  as	  public	  hearings	  in	  the	  Daily	  Herald;	  and	  mailed	  notice	  sent	  to	  all	  property	  
owners	  within	  300	  feet.	  	  
	  
A	  community	  open	  house	  was	  also	  held	  at	  which	  time	  neighbors	  and	  City	  residents	  had	  the	  opportunity	  
for	  an	  initial	  look	  at	  the	  proposed	  development,	  and	  previous	  hearings	  were	  held	  by	  the	  Commission	  on	  
February	  13,	  2014.	  Work	  sessions	  were	  held	  with	  the	  Commission	  and	  Council	  on	  this	  revised	  layout	  in	  
April	  and	  May	  2014.	  	  
	  
The	  public	  hearings	  with	  the	  City	  Council	  have	  been	  scheduled	  and	  noticed	  for	  June	  17,	  2014.	  

	  
F. REVIEW	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  	  	  

Place	  Type	  	  
The	  Community	  Plan	  designates	  the	  entire	  ~182	  acre	  Legacy	  Farms	  development	  as	  Traditional	  
Neighborhood,	  which	  is	  described	  in	  the	  DAP	  as	  follows:	  	  
	  

	  
	  

Page 12 of 36



 5 

Density	  
The	  Community	  Plan	  proposes	  a	  maximum	  of	  1000	  residential	  units,	  and	  55	  non-‐residential	  unit	  
equivalents,	  which	  results	  in	  an	  average	  of	  ~5.8	  units	  per	  acre.	  The	  distribution	  of	  units	  is	  not	  even,	  
however,	  with	  some	  blocks	  containing	  larger	  lots	  and	  other	  blocks	  containing	  small	  lots,	  twin	  homes,	  and	  
townhomes.	  Such	  a	  varied	  distribution	  is	  allowed	  and	  contemplated	  by	  the	  DAP.	  	  
	  
The	  densities	  of	  adjacent	  existing	  residential	  properties	  (to	  the	  south)	  contain	  approximately	  3.5	  –	  5	  units	  
per	  acre.	  To	  transition	  density	  appropriately	  within	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  development,	  the	  Community	  Plan	  
and	  Village	  Plan	  propose	  10,000	  s.f.	  and	  8,000	  s.f.	  lots	  in	  the	  blocks	  closest	  to	  these	  existing	  
neighborhoods,	  with	  lot	  size	  decreasing	  and	  densities	  increasing	  as	  the	  blocks	  move	  north	  and	  farther	  
away	  from	  these	  existing	  neighborhoods.	  	  
	  
Unit	  Type	  
Legacy	  Farms	  proposed	  a	  mixture	  of	  large-‐lot	  single	  family	  homes,	  small-‐lot	  and	  cottage	  single	  family	  
homes,	  twin	  homes,	  and	  several	  types	  of	  townhomes.	  The	  DAP	  anticipated	  and	  permitted	  this	  type	  of	  
development.	  While	  also	  permitted	  by	  the	  DAP,	  “small	  scale	  apartments”	  have	  been	  removed	  from	  the	  
proposal.	  	  
	  
Traffic	  and	  Infrastructure	  
The	  applicants	  have	  provided	  a	  traffic	  study	  and	  infrastructure	  plans,	  which	  were	  previously	  reviewed	  by	  
the	  City	  Engineer.	  Due	  to	  the	  changes,	  a	  revised	  traffic	  study	  is	  required.	  (See	  Engineer’s	  report.)	  	  

	  
	   Form	  Based	  Code	  /	  Development	  Standards	  
	   City	  Staff	  has	  been	  working	  with	  the	  applicants	  on	  the	  governing	  standards	  and	  principles	  of	  the	  project,	  

which	  are	  contained	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  1.	  
	  

The	  Community	  Plan	  contains	  the	  general	  standards	  for	  the	  entire	  ~182	  acre	  project:	  
• Community	  Plan	  Process	  
• Place	  Type	  Designation	  
• Block	  Types	  
• Transition	  in	  density	  from	  existing	  residential	  development	  
• Equivalent	  Residential	  Unit	  (ERU)	  allocation	  	  
• Thoroughfare	  Plans	  (street	  /	  road	  standards)	  

o Frontage	  Types	  
o Utility	  Easements	  
o Turning	  Radii	  
o Pedestrian	  Crossings	  
o Planting	  Information	  

• Parking	  
• Lighting	  Standards	  
• Architectural	  Styles	  
• Open	  Space	  types	  and	  conceptual	  layout	  
• Landscape	  Guidelines	  
• Signage	  Standards	  
• Fencing	  Standards	  
• Phasing	  
• Infrastructure	  
• Constraints	  

Page 13 of 36



 6 

• Traffic	  Study	  
• Definitions	  

	  
Village	  Plan	  1	  contains	  additional	  standards	  to	  implement	  the	  Community	  Plan	  on	  a	  particular	  sub-‐phase.	  
While	  these	  topics	  were	  addressed	  at	  a	  higher	  level	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan,	  the	  information	  in	  the	  Village	  
Plan	  is	  more	  specific	  and	  applies	  only	  to	  the	  47.95	  acres	  contained	  in	  the	  Village	  Plan:	  	  

• Village	  Plan	  Process	  
• Sub-‐districts	  
• Private	  Frontages	  
• Conceptual	  Lotting	  Plan	  (lot	  layout)	  
• Product	  types	  (10,000	  s.f.	  lots,	  8,000	  s.f.	  lots,	  6,000	  s.f.	  lots,	  cottages	  and	  rear	  lane	  cottages,	  

twin	  homes,	  and	  several	  townhome	  types)	  
• Thoroughfares	  	  
• Street	  Names	  
• Pedestrian	  Plan	  
• Architectural	  details	  /	  materials	  
• Color	  Palette	  
• Open	  space	  	  
• Phasing	  
• Infrastructure	  and	  Utilities	  

	  
Staff	  Review	  
Several	  remaining	  items	  identified	  by	  Staff	  need	  to	  be	  corrected	  or	  clarified	  prior	  to	  final	  signature	  of	  the	  
CP	  and	  VP.	  These	  include	  items	  such	  as	  the	  following:	  

• Typos	  such	  as	  incorrect	  numbers,	  and	  percentages	  and	  acreages	  that	  do	  not	  add	  up	  to	  100%	  
• Clarifications	  on	  where	  on-‐street	  parking	  is	  encouraged	  and	  prohibited	  
• Protection	  of	  clear-‐view	  triangles	  on	  corner	  lots	  
• Shared-‐lane	  townhomes	  that	  access	  on	  a	  main	  street	  need	  to	  access	  a	  shared	  lane	  
• Other	  clarifications	  and	  minor	  edits	  

	  
More	  detail	  on	  the	  standards	  above	  are	  found	  in	  the	  proposed	  Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan	  and	  

Village	  Plan	  1,	  obtained	  by	  visiting	  www.saratogaspringscity.com/planning,	  and	  clicking	  on	  “pending	  
applications”.	  Both	  the	  original	  version	  and	  the	  new	  proposals	  are	  available.	  	  

	  
G. GENERAL	  PLAN	  	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  	  

	   The	  General	  Plan	  Land	  Use	  map	  identifies	  this	  area	  as	  Planned	  Community,	  which	  states:	  	  
	  

	  

Page 14 of 36



 7 

	   The	  2883	  acre	  DAP	  was	  approved	  in	  2010	  in	  compliance	  with	  the	  General	  Plan	  and	  the	  intent	  of	  the	  
Planned	  Community	  designation.	  The	  proposed	  Community	  Plan	  includes	  trail	  connections	  and	  parks	  in	  
compliance	  with	  the	  related	  master	  plans.	  	  

	  
H. CODE	  CRITERIA	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  

	   The	  property	  is	  zoned	  PC,	  and	  is	  subject	  to	  the	  standards	  and	  requirements	  in	  Section	  19.26	  of	  the	  Code,	  
and	  its	  several	  sub-‐sections.	  	  
	  
19.26.04	  –	  Uses	  Permitted	  within	  a	  Planned	  Community	  District	  

• The	  application	  includes	  multi-‐family	  and	  single	  family	  homes,	  school	  and	  church	  sites,	  parks,	  and	  
trails.	  All	  of	  these	  uses	  are	  permitted	  in	  the	  PC	  zone.	  	  

	  
COMMUNITY	  PLAN	  CODE	  REQUIREMENTS	  	  

	  
Section	  19.26.06	  –	  Guiding	  Standards	  of	  Community	  Plans	  

	   	  
The	  standards	  for	  a	  Community	  Plan	  are	  below:	  	  

	  
1. Development	  Type	  and	  Intensity.	  The	  allowed	  uses	  and	  the	  conceptual	  intensity	  of	  development	  

in	  a	  Planned	  Community	  District	  shall	  be	  as	  established	  by	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  
Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  Subdivision	  plats	  and	  building	  permits	  will	  be	  reviewed	  for	  
compliance	  with	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  

	  
2. Equivalent	  Residential	  Unit	  Transfers.	  	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  Community	  Plan	  contains	  a	  maximum	  of	  1000	  units,	  and	  a	  
provision	  for	  density	  to	  be	  transferred	  between	  Village	  Plans	  in	  the	  development.	  	  
	  

3. Development	  Standards.	  Guiding	  development	  standards	  shall	  be	  established	  in	  the	  Community	  
Plan.	  	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  Form	  Based	  Code	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan	  has	  established	  
common	  standards	  and	  architectural	  guidelines,	  and	  will	  be	  the	  governing	  standards	  for	  
the	  development.	  Any	  conflicts	  between	  the	  Code	  and	  the	  Community	  Plan	  will	  be	  
governed	  by	  the	  Community	  Plan,	  while	  any	  topics	  not	  addressed	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan	  
will	  be	  governed	  by	  applicable	  regulations	  and	  standards	  of	  the	  City.	  A	  discussion	  of	  
private	  vs.	  semi-‐private	  fencing	  along	  trail	  corridors	  and	  open	  space	  was	  not	  fully	  resolved	  
at	  the	  Commission	  hearing	  and	  work	  sessions	  with	  the	  Commission	  and	  Council.	  	  

	  
4. Open	  Space	  Requirements.	  	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  While	  the	  Code	  currently	  requires	  30%	  open	  space,	  it	  allows	  DAPs	  
to	  include	  a	  lower	  range.	  The	  City	  Center	  DAP	  is	  the	  governing	  document	  for	  the	  proposed	  
Community	  Plan,	  and	  the	  proposed	  open	  space	  meets	  the	  standards	  and	  range	  of	  18-‐24%	  
as	  identified	  in	  the	  DAP.	  	  
	  

5. No	  structure	  (excluding	  signs	  and	  entry	  features)	  may	  be	  closer	  than	  twenty	  feet	  to	  the	  peripheral	  
property	  line	  of	  the	  Planned	  Community	  District	  boundaries.	  	  

a. The	  area	  within	  this	  twenty	  foot	  area	  is	  to	  be	  used	  as	  a	  buffer	  strip	  and	  may	  be	  counted	  
toward	  open	  space	  requirements,	  but	  shall	  not	  include	  required	  back	  yards	  or	  building	  set	  
back	  areas.	  	  

Page 15 of 36



 8 

b. The	  City	  Council	  may	  grant	  a	  waiver	  to	  the	  requirement	  set	  forth	  in	  this	  Subsection	  upon	  a	  
finding	  that	  the	  buffer	  requirement	  will	  result	  in	  the	  creation	  of	  non-‐functional	  or	  non-‐
useable	  open	  space	  area	  and	  will	  be	  detrimental	  to	  the	  provision	  of	  useful	  and	  functional	  
open	  space	  within	  the	  Project.	  	  

Staff	  finding:	  up	  for	  discussion.	  The	  applicants	  have	  requested	  a	  waiver	  to	  this	  
requirement	  to	  allow	  them	  to	  provide	  a	  trail	  corridor	  along	  Sherwood	  Drive	  
instead	  of	  a	  buffer	  at	  the	  back	  of	  homes.	  The	  Commission	  was	  split	  in	  their	  
discussion	  of	  this	  request	  during	  the	  February	  13,	  2014	  hearing,	  and	  also	  the	  
Council	  at	  the	  most	  recent	  work	  session.	  	  

	  
19.26.07	  –	  Contents	  of	  Community	  Plans	  
	  
The	  items	  summarized	  below	  are	  required	  to	  be	  part	  of	  a	  Community	  Plan:	  	  

1. Legal	  Description.	  Provided	  
2. Use	  Map.	  Provided	  
3. Buildout	  Allocation.	  Provided	  
4. Open	  Space	  Plan.	  Provided	  
5. Guiding	  Principles.	  Provided	  
5. Utility	  Capacities.	  Provided	  
6. Conceptual	  Plans.	  Other	  elements	  as	  appropriate	  -‐	  conceptual	  grading,	  wildlife	  mitigation,	  

open	  space	  management,	  hazardous	  materials	  remediation,	  fire	  protection.	  Provided	  
8. Additional	  Elements.	  	  

a. responses	  to	  existing	  physical	  characteristics	  of	  the	  site	  Provided	  
b. findings	  statement	  Provided	  
c. environmental	  issues	  Provided	  
d. means	  to	  ensure	  compliance	  with	  standards	  in	  Community	  Plan	  Provided	  

9. Application	  and	  Fees.	  Provided	  
	  

19.26.05	  –	  Adoption	  and	  Amendment	  of	  Community	  Plans	  
	  
The	  criteria	  for	  adoption	  of	  a	  Community	  Plan	  are	  below:	  	  
	  

a. is	  consistent	  with	  the	  goals,	  objectives,	  and	  policies	  of	  the	  General	  Plan,	  with	  particular	  emphasis	  
placed	  upon	  those	  policies	  related	  to	  community	  identity,	  distinctive	  qualities	  in	  communities	  and	  
neighborhoods,	  diversity	  of	  housing,	  integration	  of	  uses,	  pedestrian	  and	  transit	  design,	  and	  
environmental	  protection;	  
	   Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  See	  Section	  G	  of	  this	  report.	  	  
	  

b. does	  not	  exceed	  the	  number	  of	  equivalent	  residential	  units	  and	  square	  footage	  of	  nonresidential	  
uses	  of	  the	  General	  Plan;	  	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  General	  Plan	  does	  not	  identify	  ERUs	  or	  square	  footage,	  
however	  the	  DAP	  does.	  The	  project	  is	  well	  below	  the	  maximum	  allowed	  per	  the	  DAP.	  	  
	  

c. contains	  sufficient	  standards	  to	  guide	  the	  creation	  of	  innovative	  design	  that	  responds	  to	  unique	  
conditions;	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  proposed	  standards	  are	  innovative	  and	  will	  permit	  the	  
proposed	  densities	  and	  maintain	  quality	  of	  design.	  
	  	  

Page 16 of 36



 9 

d. is	  compatible	  with	  surrounding	  development	  and	  properly	  integrates	  land	  uses	  and	  infrastructure	  
with	  adjacent	  properties;	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  Adjacent	  developed	  residential	  properties	  contain	  similar	  densities	  
to	  those	  densities	  proposed	  along	  the	  southern	  edge	  of	  the	  development,	  and	  the	  proposal	  
transitions	  into	  higher	  density	  only	  once	  no	  longer	  adjacent	  to	  existing	  residential	  areas.	  	  
	  

e. includes	  adequate	  provisions	  for	  utilities,	  services,	  roadway	  networks,	  and	  emergency	  vehicle	  
access;	  and	  public	  safety	  service	  demands	  will	  not	  exceed	  the	  capacity	  of	  existing	  and	  planned	  
systems	  without	  adequate	  mitigation;	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  applicants	  have	  provided	  information	  to	  staff	  for	  review,	  
however	  finalization	  of	  the	  utility	  plan	  is	  awaiting	  finalization	  of	  the	  Tickville	  Wash	  
floodplain	  remediation	  and	  determination	  with	  FEMA.	  The	  applicants	  request	  that	  the	  
Commission	  consider	  forwarding	  a	  motion	  with	  conditions	  concerning	  the	  utilities	  and	  
floodplain.	  Staff	  has	  worked	  out	  sufficient	  detail,	  and	  is	  confident	  that	  remaining	  details	  
will	  be	  finalized	  prior	  to	  preliminary	  plat	  approvals.	  	  
	  

f. is	  consistent	  with	  the	  guiding	  standards	  listed	  in	  Section	  19.26.06;	  and	  
Staff	  finding:	  up	  for	  discussion.	  The	  application	  complies	  with	  standards	  1-‐4,	  however	  the	  
project	  is	  requesting	  an	  exemption	  from	  standard	  5.	  	  
	  

g. contains	  the	  required	  elements	  as	  dictated	  in	  Section	  19.26.07.	  
Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  application	  contains	  the	  minimum	  required	  items.	  	  

	  
VILLAGE	  PLAN	  CODE	  REQUIREMENTS	  

	  
19.26.03.2	  –	  Additional	  Village	  Plan	  Requirements	  
Additional	  requirements	  for	  a	  Village	  Plan	  are	  summarized	  below:	  	  

a. A	  detailed	  traffic	  study	  -‐	  Provided.	  Revised	  study	  needed	  due	  to	  plan	  changes.	  	  
b. A	  map	  and	  analysis	  of	  backbone	  infrastructure	  systems	  -‐	  Provided.	  	  
c. Detailed	  architectural	  requirements	  and	  restrictions	  -‐	  Provided	  	  
d. If	  applicable,	  details	  regarding	  the	  creation	  of	  an	  owners’	  association,	  master	  association,	  design	  

review	  committee,	  or	  other	  governing	  body.	  -‐	  Provided.	  	  
	  

19.26.09	  –	  Village	  Plan	  Approval	  
	  
The	  criteria	  for	  a	  Village	  Plan	  approval	  are	  summarized	  below:	  	  
	  
a. is	  consistent	  with	  the	  adopted	  Community	  Plan;	  

Staff	  finding:	  mostly	  complies.	  The	  Village	  Plan	  has	  been	  reviewed	  for	  compliance	  with	  
the	  densities,	  uses,	  block	  types,	  conceptual	  layout,	  and	  standards	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  
Some	  of	  the	  shared	  lane	  townhomes	  do	  not	  access	  a	  shared	  drive	  and	  need	  to	  be	  
modified.	  
	  

b. does	  not	  exceed	  the	  total	  number	  of	  equivalent	  residential	  units	  dictated	  in	  the	  adopted	  
Community	  Plan;	  

Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  proposed	  density	  for	  Village	  Plan	  1	  is	  a	  maximum	  of	  309	  units.	  
This	  falls	  within	  the	  density	  ranges	  contemplated	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan	  for	  the	  Block	  
Types	  in	  the	  Village	  plan.	  Regardless,	  in	  no	  case	  may	  the	  density	  in	  the	  entire	  Community	  
Plan	  exceed	  1000	  residential	  unit	  equivalents,	  1055	  including	  the	  nonresidential	  portion.	  	  

Page 17 of 36



 10 

	   	  
c. for	  an	  individual	  phase,	  does	  not	  exceed	  the	  total	  number	  of	  equivalent	  residential	  units	  dictated	  

in	  the	  adopted	  Community	  Plan	  unless	  transferred	  per	  the	  provisions	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan;	  
Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  densities	  within	  the	  phases	  also	  comply	  with	  the	  density	  
ranges	  for	  the	  Block	  Types	  of	  each	  phase.	  	  

	   	  
d. is	  consistent	  with	  the	  utility,	  infrastructure,	  and	  circulation	  plans	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan;	  includes	  

adequately	  sized	  utilities,	  services,	  and	  roadway	  networks	  to	  meet	  demands;	  and	  mitigates	  the	  
fair-‐share	  of	  off-‐site	  impacts;	  

Staff	  finding:	  can	  comply.	  The	  street	  layout	  and	  utility	  plans	  are	  consistent	  with	  the	  plans	  
provided	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  Staggered	  intersections	  may	  need	  minor	  modification.	  
The	  drainage	  and	  storm	  water	  plans	  are	  still	  being	  finalized.	  	  

	  
e. properly	  integrates	  utility,	  infrastructure,	  open	  spaces,	  pedestrian	  and	  bicycle	  systems,	  and	  

amenities	  with	  adjacent	  properties;	  and	  
Staff	  finding:	  complies.	  The	  project	  properly	  integrates	  utility	  and	  infrastructure;	  
discussion	  was	  held	  on	  pedestrian	  and	  bicycle	  systems	  and	  the	  integration	  of	  such	  systems	  
with	  adjacent	  properties	  and	  they	  were	  found	  to	  be	  consistent.	  Most	  parks	  and	  open	  
spaces	  are	  intended	  for	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  community	  and	  are	  not	  public.	  	  
	  

f. contains	  the	  required	  elements	  as	  dictated	  in	  Section	  19.26.10.	  
Staff	  finding:	  in	  process.	  See	  below.	  Nearly	  all	  required	  topics	  have	  been	  included,	  and	  
remaining	  topics	  are	  being	  prepared	  by	  the	  applicant.	  	  

	  
19.26.10	  –	  Contents	  of	  a	  Village	  Plan	  
	  
The	  required	  contents	  of	  a	  Village	  Plan	  are	  summarized	  below:	  	  
	  

1. Legal	  Description	  -‐	  Provided	  
2. Detailed	  Use	  Map	  -‐	  Provided	  
3. Detailed	  Buildout	  Allocation	  -‐	  Provided	  
4. Detailed	  Development	  Standards	  -‐	  Provided	  
5. Design	  Guidelines	  -‐	  Provided	  
6. Owners’	  /	  Governing	  Associations	  -‐	  Provided	  
7. Phasing	  Plan	  -‐	  Provided	  
8. Lotting	  Map	  -‐	  Provided	  
9. Landscaping	  Plan	  -‐	  Provided	  
10. Utility	  Plan	  -‐	  Pending	  
11. Vehicular	  Plan	  -‐	  Provided	  
12. Pedestrian	  and	  Bicycle	  Plan	  -‐	  Provided	  	  
13. Additional	  Detailed	  Plans.	  Other	  elements	  as	  necessary	  (grading	  plans,	  storm	  water	  drainage	  

plans,	  wildlife	  mitigation	  plans,	  open	  space	  management	  plans,	  sensitive	  lands	  protection	  plans,	  
hazardous	  materials	  remediation	  plans,	  and	  fire	  protection	  plans)	  	  	  -‐	  	  Provided	  

14. Site	  Characteristics	  -‐	  Provided	  
15. Findings	  Statement	  -‐	  Provided	  
16. Mitigation	  Plans.	  (Protection	  and	  mitigation	  of	  significant	  environmental	  issues)	  -‐	  Pending	  
17. Offsite	  Utilities	  -‐	  Pending	  
18. Development	  Agreement	  –	  Pending	  (draft	  provided	  to	  applicants	  for	  revision)	  

	  

Page 18 of 36



 11 

I. Recommendation	  and	  Alternatives:	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
	  
Staff	  recommends	  that	  the	  Planning	  Commission	  conduct	  two	  public	  hearings,	  take	  public	  comment,	  
review	  and	  discuss	  the	  proposed	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  Plan	  1,	  and	  choose	  from	  the	  options	  below.	  	  
	  
Note	  that	  the	  Commission	  may	  choose	  to	  select	  the	  same	  option	  for	  both	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  Village	  
Plan	  or	  may	  choose	  to	  take	  separate	  actions	  on	  each	  application.	  For	  example,	  the	  Commission	  could	  
choose	  Option	  1	  and	  make	  a	  recommendation	  on	  only	  the	  Community	  Plan	  and	  choose	  Option	  2	  and	  
continue	  only	  the	  Village	  Plan,	  or	  choose	  Option	  2	  and	  continue	  both	  the	  Community	  and	  Village	  Plans,	  or	  
make	  other	  combinations	  of	  the	  Commission’s	  choice.	  	  
	  
Option	  1	  –	  Positive	  Recommendations	  	  
“I	  move	  to	  forward	  a	  positive	  recommendation	  to	  the	  City	  Council	  for	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan	  
with	  the	  Findings	  and	  Conditions	  below:”	  

	  
Findings	  	  
1. The	  application	  complies	  with	  the	  City	  Center	  District	  Area	  Plan	  (DAP).	  Specifically,	  the	  

neighborhood	  type,	  required	  contents,	  density,	  and	  unit	  type	  are	  as	  permitted	  in	  the	  DAP.	  	  
2. With	  appropriate	  modifications,	  the	  application	  complies	  with	  Section	  19.26.05	  of	  the	  

Development	  Code	  as	  outlined	  in	  Section	  H	  of	  the	  Staff	  report,	  which	  section	  is	  incorporated	  
by	  reference	  herein.	  Particularly:	  

a. The	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  goals,	  objectives,	  and	  policies	  of	  the	  General	  
Plan,	  through	  particular	  emphasis	  placed	  upon	  policies	  related	  to	  community	  identity,	  
distinctive	  qualities	  in	  communities	  and	  neighborhoods,	  diversity	  of	  housing,	  
integration	  of	  uses,	  pedestrian	  and	  transit	  design,	  and	  environmental	  protection;	  

b. The	  1055	  units	  maximum	  does	  not	  exceed	  the	  number	  of	  equivalent	  residential	  units	  
and	  square	  footage	  of	  nonresidential	  uses	  of	  the	  General	  Plan;	  	  

c. The	  application	  contains	  sufficient	  standards	  to	  guide	  the	  creation	  of	  innovative	  
design	  that	  responds	  to	  unique	  conditions;	  

d. The	  application	  is	  compatible	  with	  surrounding	  development	  and	  properly	  integrates	  
land	  uses	  and	  infrastructure	  with	  adjacent	  properties;	  

e. The	  application	  includes	  adequate	  provisions	  for	  utilities,	  services,	  roadway	  networks,	  
and	  emergency	  vehicle	  access;	  and	  public	  safety	  service	  demands	  will	  not	  exceed	  the	  
capacity	  of	  existing	  and	  planned	  systems	  without	  adequate	  mitigation;	  

f. The	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  guiding	  standards	  listed	  in	  Section	  19.26.06;	  
with	  the	  exception	  of	  an	  approved	  exemption	  from	  standard	  5.	  

g. The	  application	  contains	  the	  required	  elements	  as	  dictated	  in	  Section	  19.26.07.	  
	  

Conditions:	  
1. All	  requirements	  of	  the	  City	  Engineer	  shall	  be	  met.	  	  
2. All	  requirements	  of	  FEMA	  shall	  be	  met.	  
3. The	  Community	  Plan	  shall	  be	  edited	  as	  directed	  by	  the	  Commission,	  including	  correction	  of	  

typos	  and	  inconsistencies	  as	  identified	  by	  Staff.	  	  
4. Any	  additional	  conditions	  articulated	  by	  the	  Commission:	  ____________________________.	  	  	  

	  
“I	  also	  move	  to	  forward	  a	  positive	  recommendation	  to	  the	  City	  Council	  for	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  Village	  Plan	  1	  
with	  the	  Findings	  and	  Conditions	  below:”	  

	  
	  

Page 19 of 36



 12 

	  
Findings	  	  
1. The	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  guiding	  standards	  in	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan.	  

Specifically,	  the	  density,	  unit	  types,	  block	  types,	  thoroughfares,	  and	  other	  standards	  are	  
expressly	  as	  contained	  in	  the	  Community	  Plan.	  	  

2. The	  application	  complies	  with	  the	  criteria	  in	  section	  19.26.09	  of	  the	  Development	  Code,	  as	  
articulated	  in	  Section	  H	  of	  the	  Staff	  report,	  which	  section	  is	  incorporated	  by	  reference	  herein.	  
Particularly:	  

a. With	  appropriate	  modifications,	  the	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  adopted	  
Community	  Plan;	  

b. The	  range	  of	  density	  in	  the	  application	  does	  not	  exceed	  the	  total	  number	  of	  
equivalent	  residential	  units	  dictated	  in	  the	  adopted	  Community	  Plan;	  

c. For	  an	  individual	  phase,	  the	  density	  will	  not	  exceed	  the	  total	  number	  of	  equivalent	  
residential	  units	  dictated	  in	  the	  adopted	  Community	  Plan	  unless	  transferred	  per	  the	  
provisions	  of	  the	  Community	  Plan;	  

d. The	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  utility,	  infrastructure,	  and	  circulation	  plans	  of	  
the	  Community	  Plan;	  includes	  adequately	  sized	  utilities,	  services,	  and	  roadway	  
networks	  to	  meet	  demands;	  and	  mitigates	  the	  fair-‐share	  of	  off-‐site	  impacts.	  	  

e. The	  application	  properly	  integrates	  utility,	  infrastructure,	  open	  spaces,	  pedestrian	  and	  
bicycle	  systems,	  and	  amenities	  with	  adjacent	  properties;	  	  and	  

f. The	  application	  contains	  the	  required	  elements	  as	  dictated	  in	  Section	  19.26.10.	  
	  

Conditions:	  
1. All	  requirements	  of	  the	  City	  Engineer	  shall	  be	  met.	  
2. All	  requirements	  of	  FEMA	  shall	  be	  met.	  
3. The	  Village	  Plan	  shall	  be	  amended	  as	  directed	  by	  the	  Planning	  Commission,	  including	  

correction	  of	  typos	  and	  inconsistencies	  as	  identified	  by	  Staff.	  	  
4. Any	  other	  conditions	  as	  articulated	  by	  the	  Commission___________________________.	  

	  
Option	  2	  -‐	  Continuance	  
	  “I	  move	  to	  continue	  both	  items	  to	  another	  meeting,	  with	  direction	  to	  the	  applicant	  and	  Staff	  on	  
information	  and	  /	  or	  changes	  needed	  to	  render	  a	  decision,	  as	  follows:	  	  
	  

1. ______________________________________________________________	  
2. ______________________________________________________________	  
3. ______________________________________________________________	  

	  
Option	  3	  –	  Negative	  Recommendation	  
“I	  move	  to	  forward	  a	  negative	  recommendation	  to	  the	  City	  Council	  for	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  Community	  Plan	  
with	  the	  Findings	  below:	  

	  
1. ______________________________________________________________	  
2. ______________________________________________________________	  
3. ______________________________________________________________	  

	  
“I	  also	  move	  to	  forward	  a	  negative	  recommendation	  to	  the	  City	  Council	  for	  the	  Legacy	  Farms	  Village	  Plan	  
with	  the	  Findings	  below:	  

	  
1. ______________________________________________________________	  

Page 20 of 36



 13 

2. ______________________________________________________________	  
3. ______________________________________________________________	  

	  
I	  also	  move	  to	  continue	  the	  final	  decisions	  to	  a	  future	  meeting,	  on	  June	  26th,	  and	  direct	  Staff	  to	  return	  
with	  official	  Findings	  as	  outlined	  in	  my	  motion.”	  	  	  

	  
J. Attachments:	  	  	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  

A. Location	  &	  Zone	  Map	   	   	   	   	   (page	  14)	  
B. Aerial	  Photo	   	   	   	   	   	   (page	  15)	  
C. City	  Engineer’s	  Report	  dated	  June	  5,	  2014	   	   	   (pages	  16-‐20)	  
D. City	  Engineer’s	  Traffic	  Report	  dated	  April	  8,	  2014	   	   (pages	  21-‐24)	  
E. February,	  2014	  Community	  Plan	  Layout	   	   	   (page	  25)	  
F. May,	  2014	  Revised	  Community	  Plan	  Layout	   	   	   (page	  26)	  
G. February,	  2014	  Village	  Plan	  Layout	   	   	   	   (page	  27)	  
H. May,	  2014	  Revised	  Village	  Plan	  Layout	   	   	   (page	  28)	  
I. Community	  Plan:	  www.saratogaspringscity.com/planning,	  then	  “Pending	  Applications”	  
J. Village	  Plan:	  www.saratogaspringscity.com/planning,	  then	  “Pending	  Applications”	  

Page 21 of 36



Zoning & Planning

Sources: Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, Intermap, iPC, NRCAN, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri (Thailand), TomTom, 2013

City Boundary
February 11, 2014

0 0.6 1.20.3 mi

0 1 20.5 km

1:36,112

 
SaratogaSpringsPage 22 of 36

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Line

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit A



Page 23 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit B



 

City Council 
Staff Report 
 

Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer  
Subject:  Legacy Farms Community/Village Plan                 
Date: June 12, 2014 
Type of Item:   Community/Village Plan Approval 
 
 

Description: 
A. Topic:    The Applicant has submitted a community plan application. Staff has reviewed 

the submittal and provides the following recommendations. 
 
B. Background: 
 

Applicant:  D.R. Horton 
Request:  Community and Village Plan Approval 
Location:  Area east of Redwood Road and South 400 South 
Acreage:  181.937 acres  

 
C. Recommendation:  Staff recommends the approval of community plan subject to the 

following findings and conditions: 
 
D. Conditions:   
 

1) The developer shall comply with all UDOT access permitting requirements. A permit 
for all points of access along Redwood Road shall be obtained from UDOT. 
Redwood Road is a Category 4 roadway and as such all access points, signalized or 
other, must meet UDOT’s standards for that roadway classification.  Developer shall 
complete the half-width improvements along Redwood Road (Principal Arterial) 
and 400 South (Collector) as per the City’s Transportation Master Plan (TMP) and 
Engineering standards and specifications.  
 

2) The submitted Traffic Impact study prepared by Hales Engineering dated August 
2013 needs to be updated to reflect changes to the plan that have occurred since it 
was completed including, but not limited to, the new school location and the senior 
living community. Furthermore it identifies that the intersection of 400 South and 
Redwood road will require a signal in the future to mitigate the traffic impacts from 
this project. This intersection is not currently identified on the cooperative 
agreement between UDOT and Saratoga Springs dated October 28, 2008 (Federal 
ID # 870575087). This agreement needs to be modified to include a signal at the 
400 south and Redwood road intersection. 
 

3) The proposed location of the elementary school may require improvements to the 

Page 24 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit C



adjacent roads beyond their standard cross sections to accommodate ingress, 
egress, and queuing. These modifications shall be based on the amended traffic 
study and the final site layout of the school. 

 
4) In Figure 3 (page 13) of the Traffic Impact study prepared by Hales Engineering 

dated August 2013, the numbers do not match the numbers in the Trip Generation 
section or the Trip Distribution and Assignment section of the report. These errors 
appear to be due to rounding but represent, in some cases, a difference of more 
than 5% from the intended distribution. This report shall be updated to ensure that 
the study intersections do not exceed thresholds with the revised distribution. 
 

5) The project shall comply with the recommendations of the Traffic Study 
Memorandum from Hales Engineering dates 4-2-2014 including providing left turn 
lanes for the elementary school. If the road is to be constructed before the location 
of the accesses are known, a left turn lane shall be provided for the entire primary 
frontage and extend a sufficient distance past the frontage to provide adequate 
queuing lenghts. 

 
6) While the existing utility systems (culinary water, pressurized irrigation, storm drain 

and sewer) currently have adequate capacity for the City’s current rate of growth, 
the adoption of the community plan does not represent a reservation of capacity in 
any of the systems. Capacity is available on a first come, first serve basis and final 
verification of system capacity will need to be determined prior to the recordation 
of plats. At the time of plat recordation, Developer shall be responsible for the 
installation and dedication to City of all onsite and offsite improvements sufficient 
for the development of Developers’ Property in accordance with the current City 
regulations.  While the anticipated improvements required for the entire Property 
are set out in the community plan, that is only the City’s best estimate at this time 
as to the required improvements and is not intended to be an exhaustive list.  The 
required improvements for each plat shall be determined by the City Engineer at 
the time of plat submittal and shall primarily be based on the exhibits in the 
Community plan but may be adjusted in accordance with current City regulations.  
The infrastructure anticipated to be needed for the build out of  this project shall be 
provided for in the community plan and includes, but is not limited to, the 
following: 
 

 Connections to CUWCD turnout vaults at Redwood Road/Pioneer 
Crossing and at 800 West/Pony Express Parkway.  

 A staging pond, filter station, and booster pump station on the Welby 
Jacob Canal and a 16” waterline connecting this new source to the 
existing secondary water system. 

 A 14” secondary waterline in 400 South from Saratoga Road to Redwood 
Road. 

 A 6” secondary waterline in Saratoga Road from 400 south extending 
south to the existing secondary water system in SSD. 

Page 25 of 36



 A 12” secondary waterline in Redwood Road from 400 south and 
connecting to the existing 8” secondary waterline in Parkway Blvd.  

 A 16” waterline in Redwood Road from Parkway Blvd extending to and 
connecting to the existing 16” secondary waterline in Grandview Blvd. 

 An 8” sewer main in 400 South from approximately the existing power 
substation extending east to the Inlet Park lift station. 

 A 24” sewer main along the south eastern boundary of the property 
sufficient to bypass the last segment of the existing sewer main in SSD. 

 Upgrades to the existing Inlet Park lift station. 

 On site storm drainage and detention sufficient to meet city standards. 

 Comprehensive Tickville Wash improvements sufficient to convey the 
100-yr storm event to the lake compliant with all City, County, State, and 
FEMA requirements.  

 Frontage improvements along Redwood Road compliant with the City’s 
transportation master plan and its Engineering standards and 
specifications. 

 Frontage improvements along 400 South compliant with the City’s 
transportation master plan and its Engineering standards and 
specifications. 
 

7) A map revision will be required through FEMA before any lots can be recorded in 
any area currently shown within the FEMA 100-yr flood plain including  Zone “A” 
which is identified as those areas having a 1% annual chance flood event with no 
defined base flood elevation. 

 
8) The developer shall obtain an Army Corp of Engineers (ACOE) 404 permit for any 

portion of the project that may disturb wetlands and must comply with all local, 
state, and federal laws. 

 
9) Developer shall bury and/or relocate all overhead distribution power lines that are 

within this project.    
 
10) Developer shall provide a geotechnical report and hydrologic/hydraulic storm 

drainage calculations for the overall project. Detention areas and volumes shall be 
identified as well as all proposed outfall locations. The project shall comply with all 
City, UPDES and NPDES storm water pollution prevention requirements. Storm 
water release shall not exceed 0.2 cfs/acre  and must be cleaned to remove 80% of 
Total Suspended Solids and all hydrocarbons and floatables. 

   
11) All roads shall comply with the City’s TMP be designed and constructed to City and 

AASHTO standards, and shall incorporate all geotechnical recommendations as per 
the applicable soils report. Road cross sections shall match either the ones in the 
City’s adopted Engineering Standards and Specifications or the Community Plan and 
must also comply with international fire code requirements. Intersection spacing 
along 400 south and on all internal roads shall comply with the spacing standards 

Page 26 of 36



identified in the City’s adopted TMP. The Community Plan shall include the required 
improvements to Redwood Road and 400 South in the Thoroughfare network plan 
as per the TMP and the City’s engineering standards and specifications.  

 
12) Road names and coordinates shall  comply with current city ordinances and 

standards. 
 
13) Project shall comply with the City’s adopted Parks, Recreation, Trails, and Open 

Space Master Plan. Trail and open space designs shall comply with all City standards 
and specifications. 

 
14) Park strips less than 9’ in width shall only be planted with trees appropriate for 

narrow areas and that will not damage the sidewalk as they grow. 
 

15) Open Space areas that will maintained by the City must be designed in accordance 
with City Standards and the City’s Engineering Standards and Specifications. 

 
16) Developer shall prepare and submit signed easements for all public facilities not 

located in the public right-of-way. Sewer and storm drains shall be provided with a 
minimum of 20’ wide easements and water and irrigation lines a minimum of 10’ 
wide easements centered on the facility. Utility lines may not be closer than 10’ 
apart from each other or from any structure. Developer shall provide 12’ paved 
access roads and 20’ wide access easements to any location where access is 
required outside the ROW such as sewer or storm drain manholes. 

 
17) All street lighting and any other lighting proposed to be dedicated to and 

maintained by the City shall comply with the current City standards and 
specifications. All lighting shall be full-cutoff style and meet all other City and IESNA 
standards. 

 
18) Project shall comply with all ADA standards and requirements. 

 
19) Utilities including water, irrigation, sewer and storm drain and shall not be located 

within any lot residential lot boundary (except for laterals).  
 
20) Lots shall not contain any sensitive lands; all sensitive lands must be placed in 

protected open space.  
 
21) Phasing plan within the Community Plan shall illustrate the phasing of the frontage 

improvements along 400 south and Redwood Road. 
 
22) Secondary and Culinary Water Rights must be secured from or dedicated to the City 

with each plat proposed for recordation compliant with current City Code. Prior to 
acceptance of water rights proposed for dedication, the City shall evaluate the 
rights proposed for conveyance and may refuse to accept any right that it 
determines to be insufficient in annual quantity or rate of flow or has not been 

Page 27 of 36



approved for change to municipal purposes within the City or has not been 
approved for diversion from City-owned waterworks by the State Engineer. 

 
 

Page 28 of 36



 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
2975 West Executive Pkwy, Ste. 151     Lehi, UT 84043     p 801.766.4343    

www.halesengineering.com 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:    April 8, 2014 
 
To:     Krisel Travis, DR Horton  
 
From:    Ryan Hales, P.E., PTOE, AICP 
  Jeremy Searle, P.E. 
   
 
Subject:   Elementary School Turn Lanes on Sherwood Road 

          UT13-488 

 
This memorandum analyzes the impact of moving the proposed school site on the DR Horton 
development to Sherwood Road. Specifically, this memorandum will look at the necessity of a 
two-way left-turn lane (TWLTL) on Sherwood Road. 
 
Two-way Left-turn Lane 
 
Previously, Sherwood Road was planned as a Collector Road, which is defined as a 3-lane 
cross section (two travel lanes and a center TWLTL). However, as detailed in a previous 
memorandum by Hales Engineering, dated August 30, 2013, the projected traffic on the 
roadway is approximately 2,000 vehicles per day. The memo concluded that downgrading 
Sherwood road from collector to local street status will not have a detrimental effect on the 
surrounding roadway network.  
 
The City of Saratoga Springs Transportation Master Plan, adopted September 2012, identifies 
the capacity of a 2-lane street at level of service (LOS) C as 9,700 vehicles per day. The 
projected traffic on Sherwood Road is well below this threshold. In the previous According to 
ITE Trip Generation (9th Edition, 2012), the addition of the elementary school will add 
approximately 1,000 daily trips to the roadway, increasing the average daily traffic to 
approximately 3,000 vehicles per day. According to the City of Saratoga Springs Transportation 
Master Plan, this is still well below the capacity of a 2-lane roadway.  
 
Peak Hour Traffic 
 
Although the number of daily trips is well below the capacity of a 2-lane roadway, it is 
recommended that turn lanes be provided for an elementary school at this location. Schools 
generate a significant amount of traffic in a very short time period (when school starts and ends) 
which can create delays during those periods of the day. Therefore, a left-turn pocket at the 
school access is recommended to reduce delay during the busy periods of the day. A full 
TWLTL along the length of the roadway is not necessary.  
 
 

Page 29 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit D



 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
2975 West Executive Pkwy, Ste. 151     Lehi, UT 84043     p 801.766.4343    

www.halesengineering.com 

On-Site Circulation 
 
When the elementary school site is designed, it is recommended that sufficient on-site storage 
be provided to accommodate drop-off / pick-up vehicles. Assuming the on-site storage is 
sufficient, queuing should not significantly affect traffic on the roadway. Site design should also 
consider the proposed school boundaries and locate accesses so as to encourage right-turns 
into and out of the site.  
 
Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
The following is a summary of conclusions and recommendations: 

 A TWLTL is not necessary along Sherwood Road. 
 Left-turn pockets are recommended at the proposed elementary school accesses.  
 The elementary school site design should include adequate storage for drop-off / pick-up 

vehicles and should encourage right-turns into and out of the site. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this memo, please feel free to contact us. 
 

Page 30 of 36



 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
2975 West Executive Pkwy, Ste. 151     Lehi, UT 84043     p 801.766.4343    

www.halesengineering.com 

 

 

APPENDIX 
Site Plan 

 

Page 31 of 36



300’

Scale: 1” = 300’

Statistical Summary
Product   Units
10,000 s.f. lots   110
8,000 s.f. lots     83
6,000 s.f lots     74
Cottage     10
Front-Load Cottage  115
Twinhomes       28
Townhomes   254
Alley-Loaded Towns    66
Subtotal   740

Leisure Villas   116

Total Units   856

Open Space 

City Maintained    12.0 acres
HOA Maintained    23.1 acres
School Park       3.0 acres

Total O.S.     38.1 acres (20.9%)

School
11.3 ac

Church

Church

LEGACY FARMS
Lotting and Product Distribution Plan

 DR Horton - SLR Saratoga Springs  
April 7, 2014

Plaza

400 So.

Red
w

ood
 Road

Plaza Park

Leisure Villas

Page 32 of 36



17

LEGACY FARMS
Community Plan

BT-4
11.8 acres

162 - 295 ERU

BT-4
11.0 acres

153 - 280 ERU

BT-3
11.1 acres

73 - 184 ERU

BT-3
7.1 acres

46 - 116 ERU

BT-3
10.1 acres

66 - 165 ERU

BT-3
8.8 acres

57 - 143 ERU

BT-3
9.8 acres

64 - 160 ERU

BT-2
9.9 acres

38 - 77 ERU

BT-2
10.0 acres
38 - 78 ERU

BT-2

7.8 acres
30 - 61 ERU

BT-1
4.5 acres

11 - 20 ERU

BT-1

BT-1
6.3 acres

15 - 28 ERU

BT-2
11.6 acres
44 - 90 ERU

Block Type

BT-1 

BT-2

BT-3

BT-4

Civic Space

Community Open Space

Acres

25.8

39.3

46.9

22.8

17.0

16.9

% (181.9 ac.)

14.2

21.6

25.8

12.5

9.3

ERU’s

1,000 (Residential)
55 (Non-Residential)

Total Maximum = 
1,055 ERUs 

SCHOOL
10.2 acres

77 ERU

CHURCH
3.3 acres

19 ERU

CHURCH
3.5 acres

19 ERU

9.0 acres
21 -40 ERU

BT-1
6.0 acres

14 - 26 ERU

EXHIBIT 7: COMMUNITY PLAN
EXHIBIT 8: CIVIC PLAN

300’0’

400 So.
Re

d
w

oo
d

 R
oa

d

Page 33 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit E - February 2014



17

LEGACY FARMS
Community Plan

BT-4
11.6 acres

162 - 295 ERU

BT-4
10.9 acres

153 - 280 ERU

BT-3
11.0 acres

73 - 184 ERU

BT-3
8.8 acres

57 - 143 ERU

BT-3
10.1 acres

66 - 165 ERU

BT-3
8.1 acres

57 - 143 ERU

BT-3
9.8 acres

64 - 160 ERU

BT-2
9.8 acres

38 - 77 ERU

BT-2
8.5 acres

32 - 66 ERU

BT-2

7.8 acres
30 - 61 ERU

BT-1
4.1 acres

10 - 18 ERU

BT-1

BT-1
5.38 acres
13 - 24 ERU

BT-2
11.4 acres
43 - 89 ERU

Block Type

BT-1 

BT-2

BT-3

BT-4

Civic Space

Community Open Space

Acres

24.3

37.5

47.9

22.5

17.9

14.0

% (181.9 ac.)

13.4

20.6

26.3

12.3

9.9

ERU’s

1,000 (Residential)
55 (Non-Residential)

Total Maximum = 
1,055 ERUs 

SCHOOL
11.4 acres

77 ERU

CHURCH
3.3 acres

19 ERU

CHURCH
3.2 acres

19 ERU

9.1 acres
21 -40 ERU

BT-1
5.6 acres

13 - 25 ERU

EXHIBIT 7: COMMUNITY PLAN
EXHIBIT 8: CIVIC PLAN

300’0’

400 So.
Re

d
w

oo
d

 R
oa

d

Page 34 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit F - May 28, 2014



13

LEGACY FARMS
Village Plan 1

Transect Sub-District Assignments
Transect Zone  Acres  % of Gross Area Max. ERU 

T2

T3-R

T3

T4-R

T4-W

T4

T5-R

T5

Civic

O.S.

Thoroughfares

Totals

3.05

3.36

5.83

5.27

3.05

2.57

1.04

.49

0

13.10

10.18

47.95

6%

7%

12%

11%

6%

5%

2%

1%

0%

26%

21%

100%1A

1B

1D

1C

EXHIBIT 4: VILLAGE PLAN 1

T1    T2  T3  T4 T5

N/A
4 ERU 

per gross 
acre

10 ERU
per gross 

acre

24 ERU 
per gross 

acre

34 ERU 
per gross 

acre

 T3R  T4R T5R

8 ERU
per gross 

acre

12 ERU
per gross 

acre

28 ERU
per gross 

acre

 T4W

24 ERU
per gross 

acre

12

27

58

63

73

62

29

17

341

0’ 300’

Page 35 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit GVillage Plan 1February 2014



13

LEGACY FARMS
Village Plan 1

Transect Sub-District Assignments
Transect Zone  Acres  % of Gross Area Max. ERU 

T2

T3-R

T3

T4-R

T4-SL

T4

T5-R

T5

Civic

O.S.

Thoroughfares

Totals

3.45

4.92

6.71

4.45

4.39

0.59

0.59

0

0

13.85

11.64

50.59

7%

10%

13%

9%

9%

1%

1%

0%

0%

27%

23%

100%1A

1B

1D

1C

EXHIBIT 4: VILLAGE PLAN 1

T1    T2  T3  T4 T5

N/A
4 ERU 

per gross 
acre

10 ERU
per gross 

acre

24 ERU 
per gross 

acre

34 ERU 
per gross 

acre

 T3R  T4R T5R

8 ERU
per gross 

acre

12 ERU
per gross 

acre

28 ERU
per gross 

acre

 T4W

24 ERU
per gross 

acre

14

39

67

53

105

14

17

309

0’ 300’

Page 36 of 36

saratogasprings
Text Box
Exhibit HVillage Plan 1May 2014


	2014_06_26_pc_agenda_amended
	2014_06_26_pc_packet
	2014_06_26_pc_agenda
	Item #11 (6-26-14)
	Item #4 (6-26-14)
	Item #5 (6-26-14)
	PC Report Hillcrest Condos Ph 3 Preliminary Plat 6-12-14
	Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3 Prelim Staff Report - ENGR - 6-26-2014
	City Council
	Staff Report
	Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer
	Subject:  Hillcrest Condominiums Phase 3
	Date: June 26, 2014
	Type of Item:   Preliminary Plat Approval

	lOCATION MAP
	Approved Site Plan
	footprint landscaping,original landsc plan, new elevations
	PHASE H BLD LANDSCAPE
	Preliminary Plat-Layout1
	Preliminary Plat-Layout2
	Preliminary_siteplan-Layout1
	PHASING -Layout1
	Flagship Homes_20110107_125115

	Item #6 (6-26-14)
	6-26-2014 PC PH-Review Harvest Heights Rezone and Concept
	Screen Shot 2014-06-19 at 11.12.05 AM
	Screen Shot 2014-06-19 at 11.12.36 AM
	ALTA Survey-Property Survey
	1. Zoning Letter
	v. Harvest Heights Concept Plan
	wh_01-COVER
	Layout1


	Harvest Heights Concept Plan Staff Report - ENGR - 6-26-2014
	City Council
	Staff Report
	Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer
	Subject:  Harvest Heights
	Date: June 26, 2014
	Type of Item:   Concept Plan Review


	Item #7 (6-26-14)
	PC Report Cafe Rio Site, 6-26-14
	PC Report Cafe Rio Site, 6-26-14
	Cafe Rio Site Plan Amendment Staff Report - ENGR - 6-26-2014
	City Council
	Staff Report
	Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer
	Subject:  Café Rio
	Date: June 26, 2014
	Type of Item:   Site Plan Amendment

	Location, Zoning MAP
	Walmart Subdivision Plat
	Saratoga_Merged_Rendering
	08-145SP Site (1)
	EXISTING AND PROPOSED PARKING

	EXISTING AND PROPOSED PARKING

	Item #8 (6-26-14)
	PC report Saratoga Springs South Stake Center Concept 6-26-14
	Location, zoning MAP
	2014-05-07 Summerhill Concept Plan
	13-66 G1-11 G1
	13-075 Saratoga Springs Fox Hollow 500-7418 ALTA-ALTA
	13-66 C0-11 Paper (1)
	(13-66) Civil Concept 050614-Grading
	(13-66) Civil Concept 050614-Utility
	(13-66) Civil Concept 050614-Offsite Utility
	Summerhill - Elect Site - 2014-05-01
	13-66 C4-01 Paper (1)
	13-66 C4-11 Paper (1)
	13-66 C4-12 Paper (1)
	13-66 C4-13 Paper (1)
	13-66 C4-14 Paper (1)
	Summerhill 1 Landscape L101
	Summerhill 1 Landscape L102
	Summerhill 1 Landscape L103

	Saratoga Springs South Stake Center Concept Staff Report - ENGR - 6-26-2014.pdf
	City Council
	Staff Report
	Author:  Jeremy D. Lapin, City Engineer
	Subject:  Saratoga Springs South Stake Center
	Date: June 26, 2014
	Type of Item:   Concept Plan Review


	Item #9 (6-26-14)
	Location / Zone
	Aerial
	Legacy Farms Community Plan Staff Report 4-24-2014
	Layout - 2-4-2014
	Layout - 4-6-2014





